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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 10" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Filtra Consultants and
Engineers Limited will be held on Wednesday, September 29, 2021 at 11:30 a.m. through Video Conferencing
(“vC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) which will deemed to be held at the Registered Office of the
Company to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.
a)

To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and
Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the financial year ended on
that date and notes related thereto along with the Reports of the Board and Auditor’s Report thereon.

To receive, consider and adopt the Consolidated Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and
Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the financial year ended on
that date and notes related thereto along with the Report of the Auditor’s thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Anjali Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506175), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offered herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To consider and approve payment of performance incentive to Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172),
Whole-time Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198 read with Schedule V and all the
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and all the other applicable Rules made under the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force) and Articles of Association of the Company, as recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and as approved and recommended by the Board of Directors, the approval of
the Members be and is hereby given for payment of performance incentive of Rs. 9,00,000/- (Rupees
Nine Lakhs Only) to Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172), Whole-time Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all
acts, deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect to the above resolution.”

To consider re-appointment and payment to remuneration to Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) as
Managing Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198, 203 read with Clause (A) of Section
Il of Part Il of Schedule V and all the other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and all the other
applicable Rules made under the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Articles of Association of the Company, Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company, subject to the approval of the Central Government or other
Government authority/agency/board, if any and to the extent required, and as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, consent and approval of the
Members be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) as Managing
Director of the Company for a further period of three years with effect from April 01, 2021 till March 31,
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2024 on such terms and conditions as stated in the Managing Director Agreement, which is hereby
specifically sanctioned with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to “the Board”) to alter
and vary the remuneration and/or agreement subject to the limits specified in Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modification or reenactment thereof for the time being in
force, as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper, expedient or desirable to give effect to this resolution or to make modifications as
may be deemed to be in the interest of the Company, with liberty to the Board to alter and vary the
terms and conditions of the aforesaid re-appointment of Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163), from time
to time, in accordance with and subject to the limits as stated in the Managing Director Agreement or
as may be stipulated by the Central Government, if and to the extent necessary and applicable, and to
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things for giving effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of its powers to
any of its committee(s) or any Director or officer or person to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

To consider re-appointment and payment of remuneration to Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) as
Whole-time Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198 read with Clause (A) of Section Il of
Part 1l of Schedule V and all the other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and all the other
applicable Rules made under the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Articles of Association of the Company, Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company, subject to the approval of the Central Government or other
Government authority/agency/board, if any and to the extent required, and as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, consent and approval of the
Members be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) as Whole-time
Director of the Company for a further period of three years with effect from April 01, 2021 till March 31,
2024 on such terms and conditions as stated in the Whole-time Agreement, which is hereby specifically
sanctioned with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to “the Board”) to alter and vary
the remuneration and/or agreement subject to the limits specified in Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013, including any statutory modification or reenactment thereof for the time being in force, as may be
agreed to between the Board and Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be
necessary, proper, expedient or desirable to give effect to this resolution or to make modifications as
maybe deemed to be in the interest of the Company, with liberty to the Board to alter and vary the terms
and conditions of the aforesaid re-appointment of Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175), from time to time,
in accordance with and subject to the limits as stated in the Whole-time Director Agreement or as may
be stipulated by the Central Government, if and to the extent necessary and applicable, and to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things for giving effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of its powers to
any of its committee(s) or any Director or officer or person to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

To consider re-appointment and payment of remuneration to Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172) as
Whole-time Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198 read with Clause (A) of Section Il of
Part 1l of Schedule V and all the other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and all the other
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applicable Rules made under the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Articles of Association of the Company, Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company, subject to the approval of the Central Government or other
Government authority/agency/board, if any and to the extent required, and as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, consent and approval of the
Members be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172) as Whole-time
Director of the Company for a further period of three years with effect from April 01, 2021 till March 31,
2024 on such terms and conditions as stated in the Whole-time Agreement, which is hereby specifically
sanctioned with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to “the Board”) to alter and vary
the remuneration and/or agreement subject to the limits specified in Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013, including any statutory modification or reenactment thereof for the time being in force, as may be
agreed to between the Board and Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to take all such steps as may
benecessary, proper, expedient or desirable to give effect to this resolution or to make modifications
asmay be deemed to be in the interest of the Company, with liberty to the Board to alter and vary
theterms and conditions of the aforesaid re-appointment of Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172), from
timeto time, in accordance with and subject to the limits as stated in the Managing Director Agreement
orasmay be stipulated by the Central Government, if and to the extent necessary and applicable, and to
doall such acts, deeds, matters and things for giving effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of its powers to
any of its committee(s) or any Director or officer or person to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

By the order of the Board
For Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited,

Sd/-
Ketan Khant

Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 03506163)

Address: 17-34-A, Kutchi House, Brahmanwada Road, Matunga, Mumbai — 400019

Date: August 27, 2021 Place: Mumbai

Registered Office:
1501, Synergy Business Park, Sahakar Wadi,

Off Aarey Road, Near Synthofine Industrial Estate,
Goregaon (E), Mumbai — 400063

NOTES:

1.

In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) has vide its
General Circular dated January 13, 2021 read with General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020,
General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted convening the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’)
through video conferencing (‘VC’') or other audio visual means (‘OAVM') and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/ 2020/79 dated May 12,
2020 read with circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/ 2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 in relation to
‘Additional relaxation in relation to compliance with certain provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 — Covid-19 pandemic’ (‘SEBI Circulars’) permitted the
holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’/‘the Meeting’) through VC/OAVM, without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (the ‘Act’), the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing
Regulations’), MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circulars, the 10" AGM of the Company is being held through
VC/OAVM on Wednesday, September 29, 2021 at 11:30 a.m. The deemed venue for the AGM will be
the Registered Office of the Company.
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As per the provisions of clause 3.A.ll. of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated May 05, 2020 read with
other MCA Circulars, the matters of Special Business as appearing at item nos. 3 to 6 of the
accompanying Notice, are considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, form part of this
Notice.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy, who need
not be a Member, to attend and vote on poll on behalf of himself/herself. Since this AGM is being held
pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, the requirement of physical attendance of Members
has been dispensed with. Accordingly, in terms of the MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circular, the facility
for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for this AGM and hence the proxy
form, attendance slip and route map of AGM are not annexed to this notice. However, in pursuance of
Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the Members such as the
President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM
and cast their votes through e-voting.

The relevant statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, setting out the material facts relating to the
Special Business as set out in the Notice, is annexed hereto and forms part of the notice of this AGM.
The Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents are M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited (‘R & TA')
located at 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri
(East), Mumbai - 400059, Maharashtra, Tel. No.: 022 -62638200.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
Thursday, September 23, 2021 to Wednesday, September 29, 2021 (both days inclusive) for taking
record of the Members of the Company for the purpose of AGM.

The Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Members who have not encashed/received the dividend warrants so far in respect of the below
mentioned period, are requested to make their claim to the R&TA well in advance before due dates.
Members are requested to note that dividends not claimed within seven years from the date of transfer
to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Funds (IEPF). Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(2) of the Act read with the Companies
(Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid
and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company on its website: www filtra.in and also on the website of
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Due date of transferring unclaimed and unpaid dividends declared by the Company to IEPF, is as follows:

Financial Year Date of declaration of | Last date for claiming
dividend unpaid/ unclaimed
dividend

2018-19 (1% Interim Dividend) August 23, 2018 September 25, 2025

2019-20 (Final Dividend for FY 2018-19) August 22, 2019 September 24, 2026

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act read with the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed
by the Members for seven consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the demat account
created by the IEPF Authority. Since seven years have not been elapsed from the date of transfer of
amount to Unpaid Dividend Account, no dividend is due for transfer to IEPF.

. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Listing
Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking re-appointment at this AGM is annexed to the Notice
of AGM. The Director proposed to be re-appointed has furnished the relevant consent for his/her re-
appointment.

. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email
address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations,
power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number,
MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and to
R&TA in case shares are held by them in physical form.
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. In terms of Section 72 of the Act read with the applicable Rules made under the Act, every holder of
shares in the Company may at any time nominate, in the prescribed manner (Form No. SH-13), a person
to whom his/her shares in the Company shall vest, in the event of his/her death. Nomination Form can
be obtained from the R & TA. The duly filled in Nomination Form shall be sent to R & TA at the above
mentioned address by the Members holding shares in physical mode. Members holding shares in
electronic form may contact their respective Depository Participants for availing this facility.

. Members are informed that in case joint holders attend the Meeting, only such joint holder who is
higher in the order of names in the Register of Members/Beneficial Holders will be entitled to vote.

. Non-Resident Indian (NRI) Members are requested to inform the Company / RTA the following
immediately:

i) Change in the residential status on return to India for settling permanently, if any / applicable.
ii) Particulars of NRE Bank Account maintained in India with complete name & address of the Bank, if
not furnished earlier.

. Members desiring any information pertaining to the Financial Statement or any matter to be placed at
the AGM, are requested to write to the Company Secretary at cs@filtra.in on or before September 22,
2021 through your registered email address so as to enable the Management to reply at the AGM.

. Electronic copies of all the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the AGM shall be
made available for inspection electronically without any fee by the Members from the date of
circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. till September 29, 2021. Members seeking to
inspect such documents can send an email to cs@filtra.in. During the 10" AGM also, Members may
access the scanned copy of Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under section 170 of the Act; the Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors
are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

. As per Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of Listed Companies can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 01, 2019, except in case of request
received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks
associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, Members holding shares in
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form.

. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its circular dated April 20, 2018 has mandated
registration of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account Details for all securities holders.
Members holding shares in physical form are therefore, requested to submit their PAN and Bank
Account Details to R&TA viz, M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited by sending a duly signed letter along
with self-attested copy of PAN Card and original cancelled cheque. The original cancelled cheque should
bear the name of the Member. In the alternative Members are requested to submit a copy of bank
passbook/ statement attested by the bank. Members holding shares in demat form are, requested to
submit the aforesaid information to their respective Depository Participant.

. In line with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for
the financial year 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/R&TA/Depositories. The Notice of AGM and Annual Report
2020-21 are available on the Company’s website viz. https://www.filtra.in/index.php/home/investment
and may also be accessed from the relevant section of the websites of BSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also hosted on the website of NSDL (agency providing Remote e
at www.bseindia.com.www.evoting.nsdl.com.

. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. Members
will be able to view the proceedings on e-voting website of National Securities Depository Limited
(‘NSDL’) at www.evoting.nsdl.com. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
made available to all the members, Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Board Committees, Auditors etc. as per the MCA Circulars.

Voting through Electronic Means:

a)

In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, Companies listed on SME Segment of Stock Exchanges are exempted from
the compliance of provisions related to e-voting. As the Company is listed on SME Segment of BSE Limited,
the e-voting provisions mentioned in said Section are not applicable. However, as the 10" AGM is being
conducted through VC/OAVM, as per MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Company is providing facility of
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remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 10"AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a
Member using remote e-voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by
NSDL.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations
(as amended), MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circular, the Company is providing its members the facility to
exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the AGM by electronic means (by
using the electronic voting system provided by NSDL). The instructions for e-voting system are given
herein below.

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act read with the Rules made there under, as amended, the
voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of
the Company as on the cut-off date for the purpose of remote e-voting, being Wednesday, September 22,
2021. Members are eligible to cast vote only if they are holding shares on Wednesday, September 22,
2021.

The remote e-voting period will commence at 09:00 a.m. (IST) on Sunday, September 26, 2021 to and
will end at 05:00 p.m. (IST) on Tuesday, September 28, 2021. During this period, the Members of the
Company holding shares in physical form or in dematerialized form as on cut-off date may cast their vote
through remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be blocked/disabled for voting thereafter.

e) Instructions for remote e-voting prior to the AGM:

The voting period begins on Sunday, September 26, 2021 at 09:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on Tuesday, September
28, 2021 at 05:00 p.m. (IST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Any
person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after dispatch of the
Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, September 22, 2021, may obtain the login ID
and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he/she is already registered with NSDL
for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password for casting the vote.

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date.

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-voting system consists of ‘Two Steps’ which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and
email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type Login Method
shareholders

Individual . Existing IDeAS wuser can Vvisit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
Shareholders https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the
holding securities e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is
in demat mode available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID
with NSDL. and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting
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services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.isp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& voting during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede”
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

d App Store ' Google Play

Individual . Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user
Shareholders id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without
holding securities any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
in demat mode https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on
with CDSL New System Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting
Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on
NSDL to cast your vote.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.
Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Shareholders Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in,
(holding securities | you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected
in demat mode) | to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
login through their | Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
depository will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
participants e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual ~ Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
securities in demat mode with NSDL | helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual  Shareholders  holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
securities in demat mode with CDSL | helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https.//eservices.nsdl.com/
with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-
Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. |Your User ID is:
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

in demat account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then
your user ID is IN3QQ***12******

b) For Members who hold shares | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

in demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12¥¥¥*¥*kxkkskx* then your
user ID iS 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
Physical Form. For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user
ID is 101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the
‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your ‘initial password’
is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your
mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your
‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.




FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN: L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Tenth Annual Report - 2020-21

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL
or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and
your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the Companies “EVEN” in which you are holding
shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of Company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on
“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares

for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.
Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation

page.
Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
filtra.scrutinizer@hkacs.comwith a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to
reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@filtra.in .

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@filtra.in. If you are
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an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their
mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for
remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have
not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting
system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting
system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting”
menu against Company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General
Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of
Company will be displayed. Please note that the Members who do not have the User ID and Password for
e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-
Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
Members, who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact NSDL on evoting@nsdl.co.in/1800-
222-990 or contact Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager, NSDL email id: amitv@nsdl.co.in telephone no: 022-
24994360 or Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL email id: pallavid@nsdl.co.in telephone no: 022-
24994545,

. Mr. Hemanshu Kapadia (FCS: 3477 and CP: 2285), Proprietor of M/s. Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates,

Practicing Company Secretaries, failing him, Mr. Vipin Mehta (FCS: 8587 and CP: 9869), Partner of M/s.
VPP & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, have been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize
the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

. The Scrutinizers shall immediately, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast

during the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, within 48
hours from the conclusion of the meeting, a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in
favor or against of the resolutions transacted in the AGM and submit forthwith the same to the Chairman
of the Company or a person authorised by him in writing who shall countersign the same.

. The Chairman or the authorised person shall declare the results of the voting forthwith and the results

declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company i.e.
https://www.filtra.in/index.php/home/investment and on the website of NSDL i.e.
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com. The Company shall also simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited,
where the shares of the Company are listed.
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24. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to have been passed on
the date of the 10"AGM i.e. Wednesday, September 29, 2021.

By the order of the Board

For Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited,

Sd/-

Ketan Khant

Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 03506163)

Address: 17-34-A, Kutchi House, Brahmanwada Road, Matunga, Mumbai — 400019

Date: August 27, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure to resolutions mentioned at item no 3 to 6 to the notice calling 10™ Annual General Meeting
providing details as required to be furnished as per para 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard — 2 and Regulation
36(2) of the Listing Regulations with respect to Directors seeking re-appointment at this AGM

Name of the Director
and DIN

Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN:
03506163)

Ms. Anjali Khant (DIN:
03506175)

Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN:
03506172)

Date of Birth

August 10, 1969

January 02, 1970

June 22, 1968

Age

52years

51 Years

53 years

Nationality

Indian

Indian

Indian

Date of Appointment on
the Board

May 24, 2011

May 24, 2011

May 24, 2011

IQualification

Diploma in Chemical
Engineering and Diploma in
Marketing Management

Diploma in Chemical

Engineering

Mechanical Engineering.

Brief resume (including
nature of expertise and
lexperience in specific
functional areas)

Having approx 27 years of
vast experience in the
marketing and dealing of
water treatment plants,
water components and
Machinery

Approx 18 years in water
treatment industry

Having approx 25 years
of vast experience in the
marketing and dealing of
water treatment plants
and related products
and Machinery

Shareholding in the

ICompany

45,00,000 Equity Shares of
face value of Rs.10/- each

14,99,940 Equity Shares
of face value of Rs.10/-
each

18,012 Equity Shares of
face value of Rs. 10/-
each

List of Directorship held
in other Companies

1. Innovative Technocare
Private Limited
2. Of Water Private Limited

No Directorship in other
Companies

No Directorship in other
Companies

ICommittee Membership

Not a Member in any
Committee

Not a Member in any
Committee

Not a Member in any
Committee

Last Remuneration
drawn (for the Financial
year 2020-21)

Rs. 49,14,000/- (Rupees
Forty Nine Lakh Fourteen
Thousand Only).

Rs. 37,80,000 (Rupees
Thirty Seven Lakh Eighty
Thousand Only)

Rs. 32,76,000/- (Rupees
Thirty Two Lakh Seventy
Six Thousand Only)

Remuneration to be

drawn after
ppointment [re-
ppointment

As per Explanatory
Statement to item no. 4 of
the attached notice calling
AGM.

As per Explanatory
Statement to item no. 5
of the attached notice
calling AGM.

As per Explanatory
Statement to item no. 6
of the attached notice
calling AGM.

Relationship with
Directors, Managers or
other KMP

His wife Mrs. Anjali Khant
(DIN: 03506175) is Whole-
time Director.

Her husband Mr.Ketan
Khant (DIN: 03506163) is
Managing Director.

He does not have any
relationship with other
Director, Manager or
KMP

Number of Board
Meeting attended in F.Y.
2020-21

4 (Four)

2 (Two)

4 (Four)

Terms and Conditions of
IAppointment/ re-
@ppointment

As mentioned in the
Managing Director
Agreement.

in the
Director

As mentioned
Whole-time
Agreement.

in the
Director

As mentioned
Whole-time
Agreement.

By the order of the Board

For Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited,

Sd/-
Ketan Khant

Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 03506163)

Address: 17-34-A, Kutchi House, Brahmanwada Road, Matunga, Mumbai — 400019

Date: August 27, 2021 Place: Mumbai
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN RESPECT OF
THE SPECIAL BUSINESS MENTIONED IN THE NOTICE CALLING 10™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING.

Item No. 3, 4,5 and 6:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee had reviewed the performance of Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN:
03506172) during the year 2019-20 and 2020-21. Based on performance review, the Committee had
recommended to the Board payment of performance incentive of Rs. 9,00,000/- (Rupees Nine Lakhs Only) as
performance rewardto Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172). Accordingly, the Board of Directors, subject to the
approval of the Members, has approved the said Performance incentive to Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172).

Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) was designated as the Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. April 01,
2012 for a period of 3 years i.e. till March 31, 2015. He was then re-appointed as Managing Director of the
Company from time to time. His term as a Managing Director expired on March 31, 2021.

Further, Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) was designated as the Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f.
April 01, 2012 for a period of 3 years i.e. till March 31, 2015. She was then re-appointed as Whole-time
Director of the Company from time to time. Her term as a Whole-time Director expired on March 31, 2021.

Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172) was also designated as the Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f. April
01, 2012 for a period of 3 years i.e. till March 31, 2015. He was also then re-appointed as Whole-time Director
of the Company from time to time His term as a Whole-time Director expired on March 31, 2021.

The Board has reviewed the performance of all the Managerial persons and their contribution in growth of the
Company. The Board also reviewed the performance of the Company and future prospectus and growth of the
Company. Accordingly, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, in its meeting held on November 11, 2020 has approved re-appointment of Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN:
03506163) as Managing Director and Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) & Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172)
as Whole-time Directors of the Company for a further period of three years w.e.f. April 01, 2021 i.e. till March
31, 2024 on the existing terms and conditions. The above re-appointments and payment of remuneration are
subject to the terms and conditions mentioned in the agreements to be executed with them and are also
subject to the approval of the Members in the General Meeting.

As the Company’s profits are inadequate during the financial year to pay remuneration on the proposed scale,
payment of remuneration to Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163), Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) and Mr.
Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172) fall within the preview of Schedule V Part Il Section Il Clause (A) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The following additional information as required under Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013 are given below:

|I. GENERAL INFORMATION:
(1) Nature of Industry: Trader and Consultants for water treatment products.

(2) Date or expected date of Commencement of commercial production: The Company is presently in
trading business and not proposing to start manufacturing activity.

(3) In case of new Companies, expected date of Commencement of activities as per project approved by
Financial Institutions appearing in the Prospectus: Not Applicable

(4) Financial Performance based on given indicators: As per the audited Financial Statement, following are
the details of financial performance of the Company for last three years:
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(Amount in Rs. Lakh)

Particulars Year ended 31° March

Financial Parameters 2021 2020 2019

Turnover

5,677.30

5,595.60

5,341.65

Other Income

2.21

19.76

48.15

Net Profit after Tax

131.05

167.20

183.96

Net Worth

1,370.55

1,239.50

1,072.31

(5) Foreign Investments or Collaborations, if any: There is no foreign investment or collaboration.
Il. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE:
A) Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163):

(1) Background details:

Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) holds a Diploma in Chemical Engineering from S B M P Institute Mumbai
and also holds Diploma in Marketing Management from Prin. L N Welingkar Institute of Management
Development and Research. He is having approx 27 years of vast experience in dealing of water treatment
plants and related products and Machinery.

Past Remuneration:

The Members of the Company has approved the payment of upto Rs. 84,00,000/- per annum as
remuneration to him since April 01, 2018 however, he has been paid remuneration during past three
financial years as follows:

During 2020-21: Rs. 49,14,000/-

During 2019-20: Rs. 49,14,000/-

During 2018-19: Rs. 47,05,000/-

Recognition/Awards:

Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) has worked with NGO Cry, REAP and RSVK to spread the awareness and
necessity of education mainly for economically poor segment of society. He has been rank holder in
college and has won many certificates for educational excellence in Chemical Engineering.

Job Profile and Suitability:

Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) was appointed as Managing Director of the Company on April 01, 2012.
He was again reappointed as Managing Director w.e.f. April 1, 2015 and April 1, 2018. Being Managing
Director, he is over all in charge of the management and affairs of the Company and performs his duties
under the supervision and control of the Board of Directors of the Company. Taking into consideration his
qualification, experience and expertise in water treatment plants and related products and Machinery he
is best suited person for the responsibilities entrusted to him by the Company's Board.

Remuneration proposed:

(a) Salary: Salary of Rs.84,00,000/- (Rupees Eighty Four Lakh Only) per annum or Rs. 7,00,000/- (Rupees
Seven Lakh Only) per month.

(b) Provision of a car with driver, a telephone at residence and mobile phone by the Company: The
Company shall provide a car with a driver for official and personal use. All operating and maintenance
expenses of the car shall be borne by the Company. The Company shall provide a telephone at
residence and mobile/cell phone and reimburse all telephone expenses; except expenses of
International personal calls.
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(c) Leave: Paid leave of thirty (30) days will be given for every eleventh months of service. Unavailed
leave can be accumulated. The accumulated leave can be encashed at the end of the tenure.

(d) Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses: The Company shall reimburse from time to time all the
expenses that he may be required to incur in the course of performance of duties as Managing
Director of the Company.

Comparative Remuneration Profile with respect to Industry, size of the Company, Profile of the position
and person:

Since the Industry in which Company operates is not organised and fragmented with many small and
medium size Companies, no comparable figures are available. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as well as the Board of Directors feel that remuneration payable to Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN:
03506163) is commensurate with his qualification, experience, the duties and responsibilities entrusted to
him. Further, he is re-appointed on existing remuneration only.

Pecuniary Relationship, directly or indirectly, with the Company or relationship with the Managerial
Personnel, if any:

Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) is one of the Promoter and First Director of the Company holding
45,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each in the Company in his own name. He is drawing remuneration as
Managing Director of the Company. His wife, Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) is Whole-time Director of
the Company and drawing remuneration as Whole-time Director of the Company. She is also Promoter of
the Company and holding 14,99,940 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in the Company. Further, the Company
has taken premises owned by Mr. Ketan Khant and Mrs. Anjali Khant on leave and license basis.

Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175):

Background details:

Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) is Diploma in Chemical Engineer from S B M P Institute. She is having
approx 18 years of vast experience in dealing of water treatment plants and related products and
Machinery.

Past Remuneration:

The Members of the Company has approved the payment of upto Rs 72,00,000/- per annum as
remuneration to her since April 01, 2018 however, she has been paid remuneration during past three
financial years as follows:

During 2020-21: Rs. 37,80,000/-
During 2019-20: Rs.37,80,000/-
During 2018-19: Rs.32,40,000/-

Recognition/Awards:

Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) has worked with NGO Cry, REAP and RSVK to spread the awareness and
necessity of education mainly for economically poor segment of society. She has been rank holder in
college and has won many certificates for educational excellence in chemical engineering.

Job Profile and Suitability:
Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) was appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company w.e.f. April 01,
2012 with general power of management and administration of the affairs of the Company and she

performs her duties under the supervision and control of the Board of Directors of the Company. She is
currently looking after Company’s Administrative and Human Development Departments. Taking into
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consideration her qualification, past experience and expertise and industry in which Company operates,
she is best suited person for the responsibilities entrusted to her by the Company's Board.

Remuneration proposed:

A. Basic Salary:Rs. 72,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Two Lakh Only) per annum or Rs. 6,00,000/- (Rupees Six
Lakh Only) per month.

Provision of a car with driver, a telephone at residence and mobile phone by the Company: The
Company shall provide a car with a driver for official and personal use. All operating and maintenance
expenses of the car shall be borne by the Company. The Company shall provide a telephone at
residence and mobile/cell phone and reimburse all telephone expenses; except expenses of
International personal calls.

Leave: Paid leave of thirty (30) days will be given for every eleven (11) months of service. Unavailed
leave can be accumulated. The accumulated leave can be encashed at the end of the tenure.

Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses: The Company shall reimburse from time to time all
expenses that she may be required to incur in the course of performance of duties as Whole-time
Director of the Company.

Others: As per Company’s Policy.

Comparative Remuneration Profile with respect to Industry, size of the Company, Profile of the position
and person:

Since the Industry in which Company operates is not organised and fragmented with many small and
medium size Companies, no comparable figures are available. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as well as the Board of Directors feel that remuneration payable to Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN:
03506175) is commensurate with her qualification, experience, the duties and responsibilities entrusted
to her. Further, she is re-appointed on existing remuneration only.

Pecuniary Relationship, directly or indirectly, with the Company or relationship with the Managerial
Personnel, if any:

Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) is one of the Promoter and First Director of the Company holding
14,99,940 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in the Company in her own name. She is drawing remuneration as
Whole-time Director of the Company. Her husband, Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) is Managing
Director of the Company and drawing remuneration as Managing Director of the Company. He is also
Promoter of the Company and holding 45,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each in the Company. Further,
the Company has taken premises owned by Mr. Ketan Khant and Mrs. Anjali Khant on leave and license
basis.

C) Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172):

(1) Background details:
Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172) is having Diploma in Mechanical Engineering from Shriram Polytechnic
Institute. He is having approx 25 years of vast experience in the marketing and dealing of water treatment

plants and related products and Machinery.

(2) Past Remuneration:

The Members of the Company has approved the payment of upto Rs. 48,00,000/- per annum as
remuneration to him since April 01, 2018. It was also approved payment of Commission of
not more than 1% of net sales in Pune region. However, he has been paid remuneration during past three
financial years as follows:
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During 2020-21: Rs.32,76,000/-*

During 2019-20: Rs.33,01,000/-

During 2018-19: Rs.31,45,000/-

*excluding one-time performance incentive of Rs. 9,00,000/-.

Recognition/Awards:

He has received award from RPG group for developing Furnace from scrap material during his service
tenure with RPG Group at their Nagpur Plant.

Job Profile and Suitability:

Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172) was designated as Whole-time Director of the Company on April 01,
2012. Being a Whole-time Director, he was entrusted with power of administration of Company’s office
situated in Pune and sale and promotion of Company’s products in Pune region under the supervision and
control of the Board of Directors of the Company. Taking into consideration his qualification, experience,
knowledge of Region and expertise in marketing, he is best suited person for the responsibilities entrusted
to him by the Company's Board.

Remuneration proposed:

A. Basic Salary:Rs. 48,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Eight Lakh Only) per annum or Rs.4,00,000/- (Rupees Four
Lakh Only) per month.

Commission: Not more than 1% of net sales in Pune region.

Provision of a car with driver, a telephone at residence and mobile phone by the Company: The
Company shall provide a car with a driver for official and personal use. All operating and maintenance
expenses of the car shall be borne by the Company. The Company shall provide a telephone at
residence and mobile phone and reimburse all telephone expenses; except expenses of International
personal calls.

D. Leave:Paid leave of thirty (30) days will be given for every eleven (11) months of service. Unavailed
leave can be accumulated. The accumulated leave can be encashed at the end of the tenure.

Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses: The Company shall reimburse from time to time all
expenses that he may be required to incur in the course of performance of his duties as Whole-time
Director of the Company.

F. Others:As per Company’s Policy.

Comparative Remuneration Profile with respect to Industry, size of the Company, Profile of the position
and person:

Since the Industry in which Company operates is not organised and fragmented with many small and
medium size Companies, no comparable figures are available. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as well as the Board of Directors feel that remuneration payable to Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN:
03506172) is commensurate with his qualification, experience, the duties and responsibilities entrusted to
him. Further, he is re-appointed on existing remuneration only.

Pecuniary Relationship, directly or indirectly, with the Company or relationship with the Managerial
Personnel, if any:

Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172) does not have any other pecuniary relationship with the Company
except, holding 18,012 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Company in his name and remuneration
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drawn by him from Company as Whole-time Director and his wife Rehana Mulla as
Manager Administration and Human Resource of the Company.

I1l. OTHER INFORMATION:
(1) Reasons for loss or inadequacy of profits:

The Company has earned profit during the financial year but the profit is not sufficient to pay remuneration on
the proposed scale. The Company’s profit is increasing constantly every year.

(2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:

The Company is doing well and its sales and profits are increasing every year. The Management is expanding its
area of operation in new markets and also adopting new sales strategy. The Management is also proposing to
include more products in its umbrella. Further, the Company has launched it's e-commerce website for faster
order processing. The said steps will increase turnover of the Company which in turn increase profitability of
the Company.

(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:
The Company is not engaged in the production or manufacturing activity. The projected revenue and profits

are as follow:
(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars 2023-24

Net Revenue 110

Profit 6

Even though, the approval of the Members by way of Ordinary Resolution is required, the Board of Directors
recommends to take approval of the Members by passing Special Resolutions at item nos. 3, 4, 5 and 6 of this
notice for approving payment of Performance reward to Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172), re-appointment
and remuneration paid/to be paid to Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) as Managing Director, Mrs. Anjali Khant
(DIN: 03506175) and Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172) as Whole-time Directors of the Company for a term as
mentioned in the respective said resolutions. The Board of Directors considers that they should be adequately
remunerated for their efforts.

All documents referred at item nos. 3, 4, 5 and 6 of the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement
are open for inspection for the Members on all working days of the Company till the date of ensuing Annual
General Meeting between in the manner provided in notes to the notice of the 10" AGM.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, except as mentioned in point no. 7
above against their respective names, are concerned or interested in the said Resolutions.

By the order of the Board
For Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited,

Sd/-

Ketan Khant

Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 03506163)

Address: 17-34-A, Kutchi House, Brahmanwada Road, Matunga, Mumbai — 400019

Date: August 27, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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BOARD’S REPORT
To
The Members,
Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited

Your Directors are presenting herewith the 10" Annual Report of the Company and the Standalone
and consolidated Audited Financial Statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 together

with the Auditor’s Reports thereon.

Financial Results:

The summarized financial results for the financial year ending March 31, 2021, are highlighted as
(Amount in Rs Thousands)

under:

Total Income

5,67,950.71

| March31,2020

5,61,536.10

Less: Total Expenses excluding Depreciation

5,47,670.49

5,37,969.22

Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation and Tax

20,280.22

23,566.89

Less: Depreciation

1,624.99

1,622.97

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax

18,655.23

21,943.92

Less: Tax Expenses

5,549.99

5,224.57

Profit/ (Loss) after tax

13,105.24

16,719.35

Brief description of the Company’s working during the year/State of Company’s affairs and
Operational Results:

The Company is trading in various water treatment products such as Multiport Valves, Dosing
System, Electronic dosing pump, Pressure Vessels, Conductivity Meters, Rota Meters etc. Your
Company is one stop solution for all water treatment components, providing wide range of
components and spares, gives advantage and freedom to the clients to choose products and spares
parts as per their requirement. In addition to that the Company also assemble the parts and sale the
customized products as per the customer’s needs. The Company runs business through it’s various
branches as well as through it’s online portal where products are sold on B2B basis.

The total income of the Company increased to Rs. 5,67,950.71/- thousand from Rs. 5,61,536.10/-
thousand, registering a marginal growth of 1.14%. Net profits after tax (“PAT”) of the Company stood
at Rs.13,105.24/- thousand in the F.Y. 2020-21 as against Rs. 16,719.35/- thousand in the F.Y. 2019-
20, recording an decrease of 21.62%. The reason of the decrease in profit is due to changes in
inventory and increase in other expenses due to COVID 19.

The Management is taking efforts to increase the revenue and to give better results in coming years
by introducing new technologically advanced products at competitive rates. Also by venturing into
new market and area.

Change in the nature of business, if any:

The Company is in the business of selling water treatment products and provides the related
services. There was no change in nature of business during the period under report.

Reserves:

The Board does not propose to carry any amounts to reserves.
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Dividend:

To conserve resources for future and keeping in mind the present pandemic situation, your Directors
do not recommend any dividend for the financial year under review.

Annual Return:
Pursuant to Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return is placed on website
of the Company and which shall be treated as part of this Report. The link is as follows:

https://www. filtra.in/upload/investment/1630912245.Filtra_Consultants_Form_MGT_7_2020-21.pdf

Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies:

During the year under review, the Company had two Subsidiary Companies viz. Of Water Private
Limited and Innovative Technocare Private Limited. However, the Company did not have any Joint
Venture or Associate Company during the year under review. The details of the performance of the
said Subsidiaries are as follows:

a) Of Water Private Limited:

Of Water Private Limited has not started operation during the year under report. Since the
Management of the Company had tried all the options to start the business operation but could not
succeed, it has proposed to close down the Company. After review of the proposal, the Board of
Directors of our Company has approved (in the capacity of shareholders) closure of Of Water Private
Limited.

b) Innovative Technocare Private Limited:

During the year the Company was able to successfully accelerate the business operation. The
turnover of the Company during the period was Rs.12,260.81/- thousand which constitutes 2.12% of
total consolidated turnover of Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited and its Subsidiaries. Further,
the profit after tax (PAT) of the Company during the period was Rs.410.55/- thousand which
constitutes 3.04% of total consolidated PAT of Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited and its
Subsidiaries.

During the year under report no Company become or ceased to be joint ventures or Associate
Companies. As required pursuant to first proviso to sub section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Form AOC-1 forms part of this report, appended as Annexure— 1.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the
Company consolidated financial statements along with relevant documents and separate audited
financial statement in respect of subsidiary, are available on the website of the Company at
https://www.filtra.in/index.php/home/investment
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Auditors:
a) Statutory Auditors:

At the 8" Annual General Meeting held on August 22, 2019, M/s. Krunal Shah & Co. (Firm
Registration No. 131794W), Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for 5 consecutive financial years i.e. till the financial year 2023-24.

b) Internal Auditors:

M/s. CNK & Associates LLP was Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2019-20. In
compliance of provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, has appointed M/s. CNK & Associates LLP as Internal
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2021-22.

c) Secretarial Auditors:

As required under section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013read with the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board, on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, has appointed M/s. Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates (FCS: 3477 and C.P. No.:
2285), Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2021-22to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 and
issue Secretarial Audit Report as required under the Act.

Auditors Report:
a) Statutory Audit Report:

The Auditors’ Report and annexure to the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and does not contain
any observation/qualification therefore, no explanations to be provided for in this report.

b) Secretarial Audit Report:

The Secretarial Audit Report issued by M/s. Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, who were appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial year
2020-21, is appended as Annexure - 2 to the Board’s Report. The Secretarial Audit Report for the
financial year 2020-21 contains following observation of the Secretarial Auditor and the
Management reply for the same is as under:

Sr.

No.

Secretarial Auditors’ Observation

Management reply

1

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of
the Company had resigned w.e.f. closing working
hour of January 04, 2020. The Board has
appointed the Ms. Shikha Sunil Chaurasia
(Membership No. A59412) as the Whole-time
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the
Company w.e.f. July 01, 2020 i.e. within 6 months
from the date of resignation. Hence, there was no
Company Secretary acted as Compliance Officer
during the audit period starting from April 01,
2020 till June 30, 2020.

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of
the Company had resigned w.e.f. closing working
hour of January 04, 2020. There is no time period
prescribed under the SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015 to fill the said vacancy however, as per the
provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013, the vacancy in the office of Company
Secretary can filled within 6 months. The
Company has appointed Ms. Shikha Sunil
Chaurasia (Membership No. A59412) as the
Whole-time Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer of the Company w.e.f. July 01, 2020 i.e.
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| | | within 6 months from the date of resignation.

10. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

A. Conservation of energy:

i.  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

As the Company is trading Company and not having any manufacturing activity, it does not require
much energy to operate. Your Company has always considered energy and natural resource
conservation as a focus area and has been constantly making efforts towards its conservation. Even
though the operations of the Company are not energy-intensive, the Company on continuous basis
has taken several sustainable steps voluntarily to contribute towards better environment. Select few
steps are listed below:

a) Installation of LED lights in all the offices of the Company,
Side sun glass set up in the Registered Office to use the natural lights during day time,
Cross ventilation and time based auto light sensors for less electricity consumption,
Use of energy efficient electric equipment, and
Educating employees and workers for energy conservation.

The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

The Company is using electricity as main source of its energy requirement and has not taken any
steps to use alternate source of energy.

iiii. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment:
The Company has not made any capital investment on energy conservation equipment.

B. Technology absorption:

The efforts made towards technology absorption:
The Company is a trading Company hence; no efforts were made for technology absorption.
However, the Company is keeping track worldwide on technological development of the products in

which it deals to have competitive advantage.

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
import substitution: Not Applicable.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year): No technology has been imported by the Company during the

last three financial years.

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

The Company is engaged in activates relating to trading of water treatment component/ equipment.
The Company also engaged in exports activities and taking measures for increasing exports,
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developing new export markets and formulating export plans. Details of total foreign exchange used
and earned on actual basis are given below:
(Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Foreign exchange earned 311.86 6,948.91
Foreign exchange used 21,253.65 20,145.05

. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including transactions
entered at arms’ length under third proviso, in prescribed Form No. AOC -2 is appended as Annexure
- 3 to the Board’s Report.

The details of transactions entered into with related parties, as per Accounting Standards, are
disclosed in the Note No. 27 of the Financial Statement.

. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under section 186:

During the year under report the Company has not given any loans or guarantees to any person,
except employees of the Company details of which are given in Note No. 18 of the financial
statements. Further, the Company has invested surplus funds, which was not immediately required,
in mutual funds. Further, the Company in earlier years has made investment in two subsidiaries
which are still continue. The details of investment are given in Note No. 11 and 14.

. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

a) Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and changes therein:

As on the date of this Report, your Company has 6 (Six) Directors consisting of 3 (Three) Independent
Directors and 3 (Three) Executive Directors (Promoter) including a Woman Director (Promoter).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
applicable Rules thereto and Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN:
03506175) retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and, being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment. The Board recommends to the Members her re-appointment as Director of the
Company.

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in their
meeting held on November 11, 2020 had, subject to the approval of the Members, re-appointed
Mr.Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) as Managing Director and Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) & Mr.
Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172) as Whole-time Directors of the Company for a further period of three
years w.e.f. April 01, 2021 i.e. till March 31, 2024 on remuneration. The Board recommended their
re-appointment to the Members.

On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Directors in their
Meeting held on June 30, 2020 had appointed Ms. Shikha Sunil Chaurasia (Membership No. A59412)
as the Whole - time Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. July 01,
2020.
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Further, at the time of the appointment of an Independent Director, the Company issues a formal
letter of appointment outlining his / her role, function, duties and responsibilities. The format of the
letter of appointment is available on our website at
http://filtra.in/upload/investment/1535001740.Appointment letter of ID.pdf

As on the date of this Report following are the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel in the
Company:

Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) Chairman & Managing Director - Key Managerial Personnel
Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175), Whole-Time Director

. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172), Whole-Time Director

. Abhay Nalawade (DIN: 00342055), Independent Director

. Yogesh Tavkar (DIN: 07011793), Independent Director

. Haresh Malusare (DIN: 02246773), Independent Director

. Vaishali Pai, Chief Financial Officer - Key Managerial Personnel

. Shikha Chaurasia (Membership No. A59412), Company Secretary - Key Managerial Personnel

1.
2.
3.
4,
5.
6.
7.
8.

Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed at the 10™ AGM, relevant information as
stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
Secretarial Standards — 2 have been given in the Notice convening the 10"AGM.

Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) and Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175), Directors of the Company,
are related with each other (inter-se).

b) Board Evaluation:

The Board evaluation process is carried through a structured questionnaire which was prepared
after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors, setting out parameters of
evaluation; the questionnaire for evaluation are to be filled in, consolidated and then evaluation was
carried out.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and terms of reference of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Committee had decided that performance of the
Board, Committee and all the Directors, excluding Independent Directors, would be carried by
Independent Directors and performance evaluation of Independent Directors would be carried by
the Board of Directors once in year. In accordance with the criteria suggested by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the performance of each Independent Director was evaluated by the
entire Board of Directors in its meeting held on March 02, 2021 (wherein the Director getting
evaluated was absent) on various parameters like engagement, leadership, analysis, decision
making, communication, governance, interest of stakeholders, etc. The Board was of the unanimous
view that every Independent Director was a reputed person and brought their rich experience to the
deliberations of the Board.

The performance of all the Non-independent Directors was evaluated by the Independent Directors
at their separate meeting held on March 02, 2021. The various criteria considered for the purpose of
evaluation included leadership, engagement, transparency, analysis, decision making, functional
knowledge, governance, stakeholders, etc. Independent Directors were of the unanimous view that
all the Non-independent Directors were providing good business and leadership skills. The
Independent Directors also reviewed and discussed the performance of the Board as whole and flow
of information from Management to the Directors. They satisfied with the performance of the Board
as a whole. Further, they have also evaluated the performance of the Chairman of the Company on
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various aspects such as Meeting dynamics, Leadership (business and people), Governance and
Communication, etc. and expressed their satisfaction over the same.

c) Declaration by an Independent Director(s) and re-appointment, if any:

All the Independent Directors have provided declaration of Independence, as required pursuant to
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, stating that they meet the criteria of independence as
provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

. Number of meetings of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors met four (4) times during the financial year 2020-21. The intervening gap
between any two meetings was not more than 120 days as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.
Details of date of Board meeting held during the year and attendance of Directors are given in table
below:

30.06.2020 15.07.2020* 02.09.2020 11.11.2020 02.03.2021
Name of the Director (Original

Meeting)
Mr. Ketan Khant Yes Yes

Mrs. Anjali Khant Yes Yes
Mr. Ashfak Mulla Yes Yes
Mr. Abhay Nalawade Yes Yes
Mr. Yogesh Tavkar Yes Yes

Mr. Haresh Malusare Yes Yes

*Adjourned Meeting of Original meeting held on 30.06.2020.

. Details of Committees of the Board:

Currently the Board has 3 Committees: the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. The Composition of various Committees and
other details are as follows:

A. Audit Committee:

The Board has an Audit Committee in conformity with the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31, 2021, the Audit Committee was comprised of three
Independent Directors namely, Mr. Haresh Malusare (DIN: 02246773), Mr. Abhay Nalawade (DIN:
00342055) and Mr. Yogesh Tavkar (DIN: 07011793). Where Mr. Haresh Malusare (DIN: 02246773)
acted as the Chairman of the Committee. Further, Ms. Shikha Chaurasia, Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company, acted as Secretary of the Committee.

All the Members of the Audit committee are financially literate and have accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

All the major steps impacting the financials of the Company are undertaken only after the
consultation of the Audit Committee. During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the
Company had accepted all the recommendations of the Audit Committee.

The details of number of Committee Meetings held during the year 2020-21 and attendance of
Members of the Committee are given in table below:
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30.06.2020 15.07.2020* 02.09.2020 11.11.2020 02.03.2021
(Original
Meeting)
Mr. Haresh Malusare Yes Yes

Mr. Abhay Nalawade Yes Yes
Mr. Yogesh Tavkar Yes Yes
*Adjourned Meeting of Original meeting held on 30.06.2020.

Name of Committee
Members

Details of establishment of Vigil mechanism cum Whistle Blower policy for Directors and
employees:

The Company, pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, has established Vigil
mechanism cum Whistle Blower Policy for Directors and Employees to report their concerns and has
also taken steps to safeguard any person using this mechanism from victimization. Further, in
appropriate and exceptional cases, there is direct access to approach Mr. Haresh Malusare (DIN:
02246773), the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Policy on vigil mechanism may be accessed
on the Company’s website at the link: http://www.filtra.in/upload/investment/1529333294.16.pdf

B. Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

The Board has Nomination & Remuneration Committee in conformity with the provisions of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31, 2021, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee was comprised of three Independent Directors namely, Mr. Abhay Nalawade (DIN:
00342055), Mr. Haresh Malusare (DIN: 02246773) and Mr. Yogesh Tavkar (DIN: 07011793). Where
Mr. Abhay Nalawade (DIN: 00342055) acted as the Chairman of the Committee. Further, Ms. Shikha
Chaurasia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, acted as Secretary of the
Committee.

The appointment of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is recommended by the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee to the Board. Your Company has devised the Nomination
Policy for the appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company who
have ability to lead the Company towards achieving sustainable development. The said Policy also
covers the matters related to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Managerial Personnel. A copy of the policy is appended as Annexure - 4 to the Board’s Report.

The Details of remuneration paid to the Directors are given in form MGT-7 and also in annexures to
the Board’s Report.

The details of number of meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee held during the
year 2020-21 and attendance of Members of the Committee are given in table below:

Name of the Director 30.06.2020 11.11.2020
Mr. Abhay Nalawade Yes Yes
Mr. Haresh Malusare Yes Yes
Mr. Yogesh Tavkar Yes Yes

C. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

The Company has always valued its investors and stakeholders. In order to ensure the proper and
speedy redressal of shareholders’/investors’ complaints, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
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was constituted. The role of the Committee is to consider and resolve securities holders’ complaint
and to approve/ratify transfer of securities. The constitution and terms of reference of the
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is in conformity with the provisions of Section 178(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31, 2021, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was
comprised of Mr. Yogesh Tavkar (DIN: 07011793), Mr. Abhay Nalawade (DIN: 00342055) and
Mr.Haresh Malusare (DIN: 02246773). Where Mr. Yogesh Tavkar (DIN: 07011793) has acted as the
Chairman of the Committee.

The details of number of Committee Meetings held during the year 2020-21 and attendance of
Members of the Committee are given in table below:

Name of the Director 30.06.2020 11.11.2020  02.03.2021
Mr. Yogesh Tavkar Yes
Mr. Abhay Nalawade Yes
Mr. Haresh Malusare Yes

. Management Discussion & Analysis Report:

In accordance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion & Analysis Report is
appended as Annexure - 5 of the Board’s Report.

. Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

As stipulated under section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your

Directors subscribe to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement and state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and that there are no material departures
from the same;
they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 and of the
profit and loss of the Company for that period;
they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
they have laid down internal financial controls for the Company and such internal financial
controls are adequate and operating effectively during the financial year ended March 31, 2021;
and
they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively during the financial year ended
March 31, 2021.

. Managerial Remuneration:

The information required to be disclosed with respect to the remuneration of Directors and KMPs in
the Board’s Report pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the financial
year 2020-21, is appended as Annexure — 6 to the Board’s Report.
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The names of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn as required
pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the financial year 2020-
21, is appended as Annexure - 7 to the Board’s Report.

No Managing Director or Whole-time Director of the Company were paid any remuneration or
commission from any of its Subsidiary Company.

. Report on Corporate Governance:

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance. We believe
sound corporate governance is critical to enhance and retain investor trust. We have implemented
best corporate governance practices in the Company to enhance long-term shareholder value and
respect minority rights in all our business decisions.

As per regulation 15 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Corporate Governance provisions contained in the said Regulations are not applicable to your
Company hence your Company is not required to give report on Corporate Governance. Even though
the provisions of Corporate Governance are not applicable to the Company, the Company is in words
and spirit follows the most of the provisions of Corporate Governance.

. Cost Records:
As the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 was not applicable on the Company; the Company was not required

to maintain Cost records.

. Risk Assessment and Management:

Your Company has a well-defined Risk Management System in place, as a part of its good Corporate
Governance practices. All the risks are identified at various levels and suitable mitigation measures
are thereafter adopted. These are subjected to a quarterly review by the Audit Committee as well as
the Board. Accordingly, management of risk has always been an integral part of the Company’s
‘Strategy of Organisation’ and straddles its planning, execution and reporting processes and systems.
Backed by strong internal control systems, the current Risk Management Framework consists of the
following key elements:

The Risk management policy approved by the Board, clearly lays down the roles and
responsibilities of the entity in relation to risk management covering a range of responsibilities,
from the strategic to the operational. These role definitions, inter-alia, provides the foundation
for your Company’s Risk Management Policy and Framework that is endorsed by the Board and
is aimed at ensuring formulation of appropriate risk management procedures, their effective
implementation across your Company and independent monitoring and reporting by Internal
Auditors.

Appropriate structures are in place to proactively monitor and manage the inherent risks in
businesses with unique / relatively high risk profiles.

The Audit Committee of the Board reviews Internal Audit findings and provides strategic
guidance on internal controls. The Audit Committee closely monitors the internal control
environment within your Company including implementation of the action plans emerging out
of internal audit findings.
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e The Company has appointed Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors to comply with the
various provisions and compliances under applicable laws.

22. Internal Control System and their Adequacy:

Adequate internal controls, systems and checks are in place, which commensurate with the size of
the Company and the nature of its business. The Management exercises financial control on the
operations through a well-defined budget monitoring process and other standard operating
procedures. In addition to the above, the Audit Committee and the Board specifically review the
Internal Control and Financial Reporting process prevalent in the Company. On a periodical basis, the
Board also engages the services of professional experts in the said field in order to ensure that the
financial controls and systems are in place.

. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at work place (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at work place. The Company has not
received any complaints pertaining to sexual harassment during the financial year 2020-21. Your
Directors state that Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

. Secretarial Standards:

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standard, as issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and notified by the Central Government.

. Other Disclosures / Reporting:

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as
there were no transactions/event on these items during the year under review:

a) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise as no such
shares were issued;
Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company as no such scheme
was drawn;
Voting rights which are not directly exercised by the employees in respect of shares for the
subscription/purchase of which loan was given by the Company (as there is no scheme pursuant
to which such persons can beneficially hold shares as envisaged under section 67(3)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013);
Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report;
Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future;
Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act;
Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors under sub-section (12) of Section 143 other
than those which are reportable to the Central Government, as there was no such frauds
reported by the Auditors;
Reporting on Corporate Social Responsibility as the Company does not attract any of the criteria
as mentioned in Section 135(1) of the Act;
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The details of application made and proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016; and

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions.

. Acknowledgments:

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank Filtra’s customers, Members, suppliers, bankers,
business partners and associates, financial institutions and Central and State Governments for their
consistent support and encouragement to the Company.

Finally, your Directors would like to record sincere appreciation to all the employees of the Company
for their hard work and commitment.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited,

Sd/-

Ketan Khant

Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 03506163)

Address: 17-34-A, Kutchi House, Brahmanwada Road, Matunga, Mumbai —400019

Date: August 27, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure 1
Form No. AOC-1
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014]
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries or Associate Companies or
Joint Ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary is presented with amounts in Rupees)

Innovative Technocare | Of Water Private

Name of the subsidiary Private Limited Limited

The date since when subsidiary was acquired November 05, 2018 November 16, 2018

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if From 01.04.2020 to | From 01.04.2020 to
different from the Holding Company’s reporting 31.03.2021 31.03.2021
period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of Not Applicable Not Applicable
Foreign Subsidiaries

Share capital 4,00,000.00 4,00,000.00

Reserves & surplus 12,12,804.87 (65,290.00)

Total assets 31,70,116.45 3,44,710.00

Total Liabilities 15,57,311.58 10,000.00

Investments Nil Nil

Turnover 1,22,60,813.43 Nil

Profit before taxation 5,59,982.88 (37,590.00)

Provision for taxation 1,49,423.36 Nil

Profit after taxation 4,10,559.52 (37,590.00)

Proposed Dividend Nil Nil

Extent of shareholding 51% 51%

Notes:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Of Water Private Limited
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not Applicable

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint
Ventures

Not applicable as the Company did not have any Associate Company or Joint Venture during the reporting
period.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited,

Sd/- sd/ Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Ketan Khant Anjali Khant Ashfak Mulla Shikha Chaurasia  Vaishali Pai
ManagingDirector WholeTime Director WholeTime Director Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 03506163) (DIN: 03506175) (DIN: 03506172)

Date: August 27, 2021
Place: Mumbai




FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN: L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Tenth Annual Report - 2020-21

Annexure 2
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial year ended March 31, 2021
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited

CIN: L41000MH2011PLC217837

1501, Synergy Business Park, Sahakar Wadi,

Off Aarey Road, Near Synthofine Industrial Estate,
Goregaon (E), Mumbai — 400 063

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 (“the audit
period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance - mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, according to the provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit period as there were no Foreign Direct Investments,
Overseas Direct Investments in the Company and no External Commercial Borrowings were made by

the Company);

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit period);
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period as the Company has not issued any Debt
instruments/ Securities);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit period as delisting of securities did not take place); and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not Applicable
to the Company during the Audit period as the Company has not bought back its securities).

As per the Management and discussed with Audit Committee, there is no Industry specific Act
applicable to the Company.

We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of following:

a. Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified
by the Government.

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015;

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above (wherever applicable); subject to following observation:

1. The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company had resigned w.e.f. closing working hour
of January 04, 2020. The Board has appointed the Ms. Shikha Sunil Chaurasia (Membership No. A59412) as
the Whole-time Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. July 01, 2020 i.e. within
6 months from the date of resignation. Hence, there was no Company Secretary acted as Compliance
Officer during the audit period starting from April 01, 2020 till June 30, 2020.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was no change in the
composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review. However, at the Annual General
Meeting held on August 22, 2019 has reappointed all the Independent Directors for a second term of five
financial years.

Notices of the Board/Committee Meetings were given to all the Directors along with the agenda and detailed
notes on agenda at least seven days in advance, except where meeting was called and held at shorter notice,
in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings held during the year and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the
Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. Further, as confirmed by the
Management, mechanism to capture and record the dissenting Members’ views as a part of the minutes, exist.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company which commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, Rules,
Regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no instances of:
(i) Public/Rights/Preferential issue of shares/debentures/sweat equity.
(i) Redemption/buy-back of securities.
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(iii) Merger/amalgamation /reconstruction, etc.
(iv) Foreign technical collaborations.

For Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Hemanshu Kapadia

Proprietor

UDIN: FO03477C000844009

C.P. No.: 2285 Membership No.: 3477
Date: August 27, 2021 Place: Mumbai

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral
part of this report.
Annexure A
To,
The Members,
Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited
CIN: L41000MH2011PLC217837
1501, Synergy Business Park, Sahakar Wadi,
Off Aarey Road, Near Synthofine Industrial Estate,
Goregaon (E), Mumbai — 400 063

Our report of even date is to be read along with the letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company.

Wherever required we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Hemanshu Kapadia & Associates

Practising Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Hemanshu Kapadia

Proprietor

UDIN: FO03477C000844009

C.P. No.: 2285 Membership No.: 3477
Date: August 27, 2021 Place: Mumbai
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Annexure 3
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

This form pertains to disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

A.

Rent paid to Mr. Ketan Khant for the premises taken on lease from him:

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:
i. Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) and Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175)
Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) is Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company and he is also the spouse of Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175), Whole-
time Director of the Company.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

The transaction is relating to payment of rent of Rs. 1,15,000/- per month for premises
located at 1501, Synergy Business Park, Sahakar Wadi, Off Aarey Road, Near Synthofine
Industrial Estate, Goregaon (E), Mumbai — 400063 and taken on lease for a period of three
years.

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:
The Agreement is for a period of three years commencing from April 01, 2020 to March 31,
2023.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
The lease rent is Rs. 1,15,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Fifteen Thousand Only) w.e.f. April 01,
2020. The said lease rent is subject to deduction of appropriate taxes in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961.

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions:

As the Company was at its initial stages of operations, earlier the Promoter has charged
lease rent lesser than the market rate. Since, the Company became stable, the Promoters
had increased the rent. However, the increased rent also is lower than the prevailing
market rate therefore it is not on Arms’ Length Basis.

Date(s) of approval by the Board: March 12, 2020.

Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188: Not Required

Rent paid to Mrs. Anjali Khant for the premises taken on lease

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:
i.  Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) and Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163)
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Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) is a Whole-time Director of the Company and
she is also the spouse of Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163), Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

The transaction is relating to payment of rent of Rs. 80,000/- for premises located at Office
No. 1503, Synergy Business Park, Sahakar Wadi, next to Synthofine Industrial Estate, Off
Aarey Road, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400063 and taken on lease for a period of three years.

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:
The Agreement is for a period of three years commencing from April 01, 2020 to March 31,
2023.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
The lease rent is Rs. 80,000/- (Rupees Eighty Thousand only) per month w.e.f. April 01,
2020. The said lease rent is subject to deduction of appropriate taxes in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961.

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions:

As the Company was at in its initial stages of operations, earlier the Promoter has charged
lease rent lesser than the market rate. Since the Company became stable, , the Promoters
had increased the rent. However, the increased rent also is lower than the prevailing
market rate therefore it is not on Arms’ Length Basis.

Date(s) of approval by the Board: March 12, 2020

Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188: Not Required.

Rent paid to Mrs. Ketan Khant for the premises taken on lease

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:
i.  Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) and Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175)
iii. Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) is Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company and he is also the spouse of Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175), Whole-
time Director of the Company.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

The transaction is relating to payment of rent of Rs. 25,000/- for premises located at Gala
No. 301, 3" Floor, Shivsagar Industrial Estate, Goregaon (East), Mumbai- 400063 taken on
lease for a period of three years.

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:
The Lease Agreement is for a period of three years effective from April 01, 2020 to March
31, 2023.
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Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
The lease rent is Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand only) per month w.e.f. April
01, 2020. The said lease rent is subject to deduction of appropriate taxes in accordance
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961.

. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions:

In order to provide affordable space and help Company to run operation with less financial
burden, the Promoter is charging the lease rent lesser than the market rate which is
beneficial for the Company.

Date(s) of approval by the Board: March 12, 2020

Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188: Not Required.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Not applicable as no material transaction entered at arm’s length basis.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited,

Sd/-

Ketan Khant

Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 03506163)

Address: 17-34-A, Kutchi House, Brahmanwada Road, Matunga, Mumbai — 400019

Date: August 27, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE 4
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
(As approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on May 30, 2015)

OBJECTIVE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy formulated in compliance with Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Sub clause 2 of Annexure | D of
Clause 52 under the Listing Agreement, as amended from time to time. This policy on nomination and
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the Committee) and has been approved by the Board of
Directors at its Meeting held on May 30, 2015.

The objective of the policy is to ensure that

% To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
and Senior Management including Department head;
the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
Directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;
and
remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working
of the company and its goals.

DEFINITIONS
Key definitions of terms used in this Policy are as follows:
Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time.

Listing Agreement means agreement executed with the Stock Exchanges on which securities of the
Company are listed.

Board means Board of Directors of the Company.
Directors mean Directors of the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel means
i. Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
ii. Whole-time director;
iii. Chief Financial Officer;
iv. Company Secretary; and
v. Such other officer as may be prescribed.

Senior Management means personnel of the company who are members of its core management team
excluding the Board of Directors including Functional Heads.

ROLE OF COMMITTEE

Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

The Committee shall:

i. Periodically reviewing the size and composition of the Board to ensure that it is structured in such a
manner which enables to take appropriate decision in the best interest of the Company as a whole.
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Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommending candidates to the Board as and when need arises keeping in view the Board structure
and expertise/experience required.

Establish and on regular basis review the succession plan of the Board, KMPs and Senior Executives.
Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key
Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.

To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

Recommend to the Board performance criteria for the Directors, KMPs and Senior Management.

ii. Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

and their remuneration.
. Help the Board to formulate and ensure the Board nomination process keeping in mind the diversity of
gender, expertise, experience and Board structure.

Review and recommend to the Board:

a) The Remuneration Policy for all employees including KMPs and Senior Management including various
components of remuneration whether fix or variable, performance reward, retirement benefits,

b) Remuneration of the Executive Directors and KMPs,

c) Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors including Chairman, as a whole and individually and sitting
fees to be paid for attending the meeting of the Board and Committee thereof, and

d) Equity based incentive Schemes.

To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial
persons and create competitive advantage; and

To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any
statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable;

ii. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management
Appointment criteria and qualifications

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend
to the Board his / her appointment, as per Company’s Policy.

A person to be recommended to the Board should be a man with integrity, possess adequate
qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for appointment
and industry in which Company operate. The Committee has discretion to decide whether
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the
concerned position.

A person, to be appointed as Director, should possess impeccable reputation for integrity, deep
expertise and insights in sectors/areas relevant to the Company, ability to contribute to the
Company’s growth, complementary skills in relation to the other Board members.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director
and/or Whole-time Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of
the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the
approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement
annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment
beyond seventy years.

A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold office in more than one Company except in its

Subsidiary Company at the same time. However, a whole-time KMP can be appointed as a
Director in any Company with the permission of the Board of Directors of the Company.
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Term / Tenure
a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its, Managing Director and CEO or
Executive/Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall
be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

b) Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of
the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director.

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in
or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven Listed Companies as an Independent
Director and three Listed Companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a
Whole-time Director of a Listed Company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

iii. Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel at regular interval (yearly) or at such intervals as may be considered necessary.

iv. Removal

The Committee may recommend to the Board, with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or
Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the Act, rules and regulations and
the policy of the Company.

Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the term of appointment, provisions
of the Act, Listing Agreement and the Policies of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/remuneration or otherwise even after
attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company subject to compliance of provisions of the Act,
Listing Agreement.

3. Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Managing Director, Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel

General:

The remuneration / compensation / commission / fees etc. to be paid to the Managing Director,
Whole-time Director, other Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be determined by
the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval which shall be subject to the prior/post
approval of the shareholders of the Company or Central Government, wherever required.
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The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing Director, Whole-time Director shall be
in accordance with the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the
Company and as per the provisions of the Act.

Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the
Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of
Managing Director, Whole-time Director.

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing Director, Whole-time
Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any other
employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not
be treated as part of the remuneration.

Remuneration to Managing Director/Whole-time Directors:
a) Fixed pay:

The Managing Director/ Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for
a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee.
The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to P.F,
pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Committee, subject to the approval of the shareholders or Central Government,
wherever required.

b) Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay
remuneration to its Managing Director, Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of
Schedule V of the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the
Central Government.

c) Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Managing Director, Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of
remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the approval of
the shareholders or the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the
Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive
recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the shareholder or Central Government.

iii. Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:
a) Sitting Fees:

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending
meetings of Board or Committee thereof provided that the amount of sitting fees shall be such as may be
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.
However, the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs. 1 Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee
attended by Director or such other amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to
time.

b) Remuneration / Commission:

All the remuneration of the Non-Executive / Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for attending
meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be subject to ceiling/ limits
as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time
being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such as may be recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the
case may be.
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c) Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to
participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company.

d) Remuneration for services of Professional Nature:

Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive Directors for services rendered which are of professional in
nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of clause (b) above if the
following conditions are satisfied:

The Services are rendered by such Director in his/her capacity as the professional; and
In the opinion of the Committee, the Director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice of
that profession.

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management:

The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and
incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with
the Company’s Policy.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee or any other Committee to be constituted by the
Company for the purpose of administering the Employee Stock Option/ Purchase Schemes, shall
determine the stock options and other share based payments to be made to Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund,
contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from to time.

The Incentive pay/performance linked pay shall be decided based on the extent of achievement of the
individual target/objective or performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
and performance of the Company which will be decided annually or at such intervals as may be
considered appropriate.

4. Policy Review:

The Policy is framed based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and the
requirement of the Clause 52 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange. In case of any subsequent
changes in the provisions of the Act or any other Regulations which makes any of the provisions of this Policy
inconsistent with the Act or any such Regulation or the Listing Agreement, then the provisions of the Act or
such Regulation or Agreement would prevail over the Policy and the provisions in the Policy would be modified
in due course to make it in consistent with the Act or such Regulation or Agreement.

The Committee shall review the Policy as and when any changes are to be incorporated in the Policy due to
changes in the Act or such Regulation or Agreement or felt necessary by the Committee. Any changes in the
Policy shall be recommended by the Committee to the Board and shall be effective on approval of the Board.

IV. Implementation:

e The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in
supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate.

e The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members.
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ANNEXURE 5
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

Global Economy:
Global prospects remain highly uncertain one year into the pandemic. New virus mutations and the

accumulating human toll raise concerns, even as growing vaccine coverage lifts sentiment. Economic
recoveries are diverging across countries and sectors, reflecting variation in pandemic-induced disruptions and
the extent of policy support.

The outlook depends not just on the outcome of the battle between the virus and vaccines—it also hinges on
how effectively economic policies deployed under high uncertainty can limit lasting damage from this
unprecedented crisis.

Global growth is projected at 6 percent in 2021, moderating to 4.4 percent in 2022. The projections for 2021
and 2022 are stronger than in the October 2020World Economic Outlook, but with offsetting revisions. The
upward revision reflects additional fiscal support in a few large economies, the anticipated vaccine-powered
recovery in the second half of 2021, and continued adaptation of economic activity to subdued mobility. High
uncertainty surrounds this outlook, related to the path of the pandemic, the effectiveness of policy support to
provide a bridge to vaccine-powered normalization and the evolution of financial conditions.

Adaptation to pandemic life has enabled the global economy to do well despite subdued overall mobility,
leading to a stronger-than-anticipated rebound, on average, across regions.

In spite of a high degree of uncertainty with regards to the path of the pandemic, a way out of this health and
economic crisis is visible. Multi speed recoveries are under way in all regions and across income groups.
However, much still depends on the rollout of vaccines across various countries, extent of economic policy
support and improvements in business sentiments in service- oriented sectors.

Indian Economy:
The Covid-19 pandemic last year was a damper in India’s march towards a $ 5 trillion economy. The Indian

economy which had already slowed down before the pandemic, suffered further disruptions in its growth due
to the stringent lockdown which was imposed across the country during the first few months of FY 2020-21
and a slew of localized lockdowns throughout the year.

The Indian Economy has contracted by 7.3 percent in FY 2020-21 as compared to a growth of 4 percent in
2019-20 as per GOI.

Various stimulus packages were announced by the Indian Government to help spur demand and ramp up
capital expenditure, boost economy and protect the poor and vulnerable sections from the impact of the
Covid-19 crisis. The Aatmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan package was one such package largely focusing on supply
side measures and long term reforms.

Given the significant uncertainty pertaining to both epidemiological and policy developments, GDP growth for
FY 2021-22 is expected to be 8 - 8.3 percent (Source: International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook,
2021 April) depending on a good monsoon, pace of vaccination and mobility restrictions if any due to a third
wave.

The GDP growth had crashed 23.9% in response to the centre’s no notice lockdown. India’s GDP shrank 7.3% in
2020-21. This was the worst performance of the Indian economy in any year since independence. As of now,
India’s GDP growth rate is likely to be below 10 per cent.

From growing only 4% in 2019-20 to contracting 7-8% in 2020-21 to staring at another low economic growth
recovery in 2021, India has been virtually stopped in all its tracks. Therefore, fiscal policy must lend a generous
helping hand to lead vulnerable businesses and households towards economic recovery.
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Global Water treatment industry:

According to a report by the Expresswire, the global water treatment market will increase at a compound
annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5.35% percent during the forecast period. The water treatment market is viewed
as a high-value market and has been found to be highly competitive consisting of a fair share of players
operating in organized and fragmented market sectors. In the wake of the pandemic, health and safety have
emerged as important customer concerns. Companies are increasingly positioning their products to provide
enhanced safety and hygiene.

Factors such as water scarcity, government rules for water disposal, and cost of water treatment are propelling
the market growth. However, deficiencies of essential knowledge, awareness about technologies, and strict
government norms on wastewater disposal are hampering the market growth.

Huge loss of both lives and livelihoods led to extreme social, economic and health infrastructure strain that the
world still confronts. The second and third infection waves necessitated renewed restrictions in many
countries and this stop-go rhythm has led to an uneven and far from complete recovery. Across countries, the
recovery has been based on the path of the pandemic, policy decisions and restrictions imposed to contain the
spread of the virus.

Indian Water treatment Industry:

Covid-19 has heightened awareness about the value of water, hygiene and sanitation. It has reinforced the
importance of access to safe and reliable water in India as well as globally especially in the less developed and
poor countries. The pandemic has once again reiterated the importance of water conservation and waste
water management.

Water, wastewater management and sanitation projects were a part of the government of India’s economic
stimulus expenditures during FY 2020-21. In the new financial year, the central government has once again
budgeted substantial outlay for major schemes in water and environment sector. Hence, the water and
wastewater treatment market in India is in the growth phase and has immense untapped potential.

The water and environment industry witnessed significant business challenges like reduced market size,
margin pressures, increased credit risks, restricted manpower mobility, supply chain risks etc. to name a few.
Further, customers distinctly showed preference for adapting integrated water and environment management
solutions.

Your Company ensured safety of its employees and subcontractors and implemented government mandated
health protocols and procedures at all sites. Its operations are now geared to face the ever changing conditions
due to the pandemic.

B. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Opportunities:
India has been facing considerable challenges in addressing safe drinking water requirements for the last few

decades. Poor quality of water supplied by the civic authorities still remains a challenge in the country that has
the second largest population across the globe. In India, Diarrhoea, a disease resulting from consumption of
contaminated water, is the cause of about 13% deaths among children below 5 years of age. These factors are
buoying the demand for water purifiers in India. Water purifier is no longer a high-end electronic product,
limited to affluent households as it is available at lower prices and has started to penetrate into the country’s
middle income group as well as rural households over the last five years. Water purifier manufacturers are also
developing and positioning products to target the middle income and rural households. With more than 20
metros expected to mushroom by 2032, the water stress will only increase, creating huge demand for water
and wastewater treatment systems in the Indian municipal segment.

The market is expected to be driven by rising product awareness across urban as well as rural centers and
Government policy. Also the COVID 19 pandemic has also sensitized people about hygiene and using hygiene
food as well as water which would drive the demand of water filter. High metal content in water sources in
States such as West Bengal, Bihar, Rajasthan, Orissa, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh is further augmenting the
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water purifier demand in various Tier Il and Tier lll cities across these States. Till recently, rural markets in India
weren’t on the radars of purifier companies, predominantly due to vast presence of low income consumer in
rural pockets coupled with weak sales and distribution networks of the companies in these areas. However,
various companies with innovative low-cost products are now aggressively targeting the country’s rural
market, particularly in offline water purifier segment. Further, the municipalities and industries are
continuously investing substantial money in water and wastewater improvement, creating ample
opportunities for water and wastewater treatment equipment technology in India.

Threats:

The chance of intentional contamination of water by undesirable person is a strong possibility in present times.
Water infrastructure can be targeted directly or water can be contaminated through the introduction of
poison or disease causing agents. The damage is aimed at inflicting human casualties, rendering water
unusable, or destroying purification and supply infrastructure. Although, massive casualties from attacking
water systems are difficult to produce, yet the risk of societal disruptions, disarray and panic are high. Water
contamination can disrupt the entire supply of purified water which can be of following types:

Chemical contamination
Biological contamination
Radiological contamination
Nuclear contamination

C. SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company deals in only water treatment equipments. Therefore there are no different segments or
products of the Company.

D. OUTLOOK

Global Outlook:

Rapidly diminishing fresh water resources, increasing industrial activity, inefficient irrigation practices in
agriculture, growing world population and stringent legislation on used waste discharge are driving the market
for wastewater treatment technologies worldwide. However, the market faces certain drawbacks, such as the
lack of awareness of appropriate water treatment techniques and significant overhead costs. These factors
may act as a roadblock to the growth of the market.

Taking just the technology into account, dissolved solids removal hold the largest share of the water treatment
technologies market, with municipal water treatment being the largest end-user industry. In terms of growth,
food & beverage industry, Pharma Industry and pulp & paper industry would fuel the amount of growth in the
demand for water treatment technologies in the region.

In North America, United States occupies the highest market share, in the value. Asian Countries like China and
India due to their large population show exciting prospect for future market for wastewater treatment
industry establishments, and is expected to lead the market through 2022.

Indian Outlook:

The Covid-19 pandemic which surfaced in November 2019, is a global humanitarian and health crisis, and
continues to impact key geographies that we operate in, with many countries reporting second and third
waves of infections. With increasing awareness and educating people through various mode, the demand for
safe and clean water will increase which will in turn increase demand for water filter and water purifier.

With India’s high population growth and intensifying water consumption, per capita availability of water has
declined steadily over the years. There is an urgent need to generate water from all available alternate sources
including recycling, reuse, recharging, and storages. There is increased awareness among the Indian
Environment and Pollution Control Boards and the norms are getting stricter by the day. Desalination of
seawater, water treatment and usage of recycled water for the industries is being tapped into by a few States
which is providing a sustainable solution to the water issues.
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Although there has been increased focus on water treatment over the last few years, there is still a big gap
between generation and treatment which needs to be addressed on priority with policy actions.

Due to increasing industrialisation, growing population and implementation of stricter environmental
regulations there is an increase in demand for waste water treatment plants across all sectors be it industries,
institutions, hospitals, homes or communities.

Corporates have also realised that sustainability reduces risk and are integrating water sustainability into their
strategy to mitigate water risk with significant capital allocation in recycle and zero liquid discharge. Such
investments will lead to increased revenue as their customers will prefer products and brands produced
through sustainable means and it will also improve profits because of reduced utility cost.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

The whole year 2020-21 was under shadow of COVID 19 pandemic which is still not over and many research
are predicting the 3 wave of COVID in India. Due to this uncertainty and change in variant of viruses,risk of
lock down still there.

Following are the major Risk and concerns:

Changes in economic and relevant regulatory policies, lower GDP growth, scaling back of government
initiatives and termination of government contracts with little or no prior notice, insufficiency of funds
and the reluctance of government departments to make quick decisions may adversely impact
opportunities from a specific country or region.

Disruptive geopolitical scenario (includes political shifts, such as major policy changes, coups,
revolutions and wars) and changes in governments or unstable political regimes in the geographies
where the Company is present, can delay project execution.

Rising competition from other global players and also un- organized sectors in the Industry may compel
the Company to lower prices to win contracts and maintain market share. This may lead to substantial
margin pressure.

Poor credit worthiness of customers can cause multiple setbacks in the midst of an order execution and
lead to project delays.

Inconsistent commodity supply and price volatility of specific commodities/raw materials could affect
project cost and gross margins.

FILTRA depends on vendors for supply of key products. Therefore, it is exposed to uncertainty in the
quality of their services, equipment and supply including timely delivery. This can cause operational
delays and increased costs.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Board and the Audit Committee are responsible for maintaining and reviewing the risk management
framework and internal control processes and policies. The Board assesses and approves its overall risk
appetite, monitors the risk exposure and sets limits, which are periodically reviewed. The Company’s
management systems, organizational structures, processes, standards, code of conduct and behaviors
together form a system of internal control that governs how it conducts its businesses and manages associated
risks.

The effectiveness of the internal control mechanism is reviewed by an independent professional Internal
Auditor and by the Statutory Auditors. The Audit Committee of the Board periodically reviews the functioning
of the internal audit and the implementation of the recommended measures to improve the internal control
mechanism.

Also preempting the impact of the pandemic, your Company quickly enabled work from home for most of its
employees through provisioning of optimal and secured infrastructure.
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G. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The year 2020-21 has shown marginal increase in top line whereas bottom line has been declined. The sales of
the Company increased from Rs. 55.96 Crores to Rs. 56.58 Crores, registering a growth of 1.10%. EBT has been
reduced by 15.06% in F.Y. 2020-21 and was at Rs. 1.86 Crores as against Rs. 2.19 Crores in previous year. Net
profits after tax of the Company stood at Rs. 1.31 Crores in the F.Y. 2020-21 as against Rs. 1.67 Crores in the
F.Y. 2020-21, recording a decrease of 21.56%.

H. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING
NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

The Company promotes positive workplace environment through its policies and best practices for all its
employees. The Company policy prohibits harassment of any kind, including harassment based on age, race,
religion, caste, creed, colour, sex, marital status or any other basis protected by law. During the year, the
Company’s Internal Complaints Committee did not receive any complaint. Total number of employees on pay
roll as on March 31, 2021 were 66.

Health, Safety and Environment:

The Company takes timely measures to protect the health and safety of its employees and minimize pollution
to preserve the internal as well as the surrounding environment. The Company also conducts safety induction
trainings for its employees and workers to make them aware of the system, safety rules and the procedure to
report any incident to their supervisors. The training programmes also give them an overview of the do’s and
don’ts during emergency situations.

I Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous
financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations therefor, including:

Sr. No.

Particulars

2019-20

2020-21

Changes (in%)

Debtors Turnover ratio

8.25

7.70

-6.67

Inventory Turnover ratio

4.90

4.06

-17.14

Interest Coverage Ratio

238.10

127.18

-46.59

Current Ratio 1.82 1.87 2.75
Debt Equity Ratio 0.09 0.02 -77.78
Operating Profit Margin (%) 3.92 3.30 -15.81
Net Profit Margin (%) 2.99 2.32 -22.41

Interest Coverage Ratio: The Interest Coverage Ratio has declined from 238.10 in FY 2019-20 to 127.18 in
the FY 2020-21 due to decline in Profits.

Debt Equity Ratio: The Debt Equity Ratio for the FY 2019-20 was 0.09 which declined in the FY2020-21 to
0.02 due to repayment of loan. The loan amount was declined from Rs. 76.52 lakh in FY 2019-20 to Rs.
14.02 lakh in FY 2020-21.

Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year
along with a detailed explanation thereof.

Sr. No. Particulars 2019-20 2020-21 Changes (in%)
1 Return on Net Worth 13.49 9.56 -29.13

e Return on Net Worth: The return on Net Worth declined from 13.49 in Financial Year 2019-20 to 9.56 in
Financial Year 2020-21, this decline was due to decrease in net profit from Rs. 167.19 in Lakhs to Rs.
131.05 in Lakhs.
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Annexure 6
DETAILS OF REMUNERATION
Details pertaining to remuneration as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director during the Financial Year 2020-21 and ratio of the
remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year
2020-21 are as under:

Sr. Name of Director/ KMP and Designation Remuneration of % Increase in Ratio of

No. Director/ KMP for Remuneration in the | remuneration of
the financial year Financial Year 2020- | each Director to
2020-21 21 median

(InRs.) remuneration of
employees

Mr. Ketan Khant (DIN: 03506163) 49,14,000
Managing Director

Mrs. Anjali Khant (DIN: 03506175) 37,80,000
Whole-time Director

Mr. Ashfak Mulla (DIN: 03506172) 41,76,000#
Whole-time Director

Mr. Abhay Nalawade (DIN:00342055) 80,000
Independent Director®

Mr. Yogesh Tavkar (DIN: 07011793) 80,000

Independent Director®

Mr. Haresh Malusare (DIN:02246773) 80,000
Independent Director®

Ms. Vaishali Pai 7,52,377
Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Shikha Chaurasia* 2,70,036
Company Secretary

#Include Performance incentive of Rs. 9 Lac.

@Remuneration of Independent Director includes only sitting fees.

* Ms. Shikha Chaurasia was appointed w.e.f July 01, 2020, hence the comparison of remuneration is not
applicable to her.

i. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of
theCompany for the Financial Year:

The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the Financial Year was Rs.3,29,565/- and ratio
of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
Financial Year is provided in the above table.

ii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year:

In the Financial Year, there was an decrease of 13.26% in the median remuneration of employee.

iii. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:

There were 66 (Including KMPs) permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2021.
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Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
Financial Year i.e. 2020-21 was 1.57% whereas the average percentile increase in the managerial remuneration
for the Financial Year 2020-21 was 33.33%.

Justification: Due to the continuous efforts of the Managerial Personnel in the expansion of operation in terms
of new market as well as launching of new products, it was justified to pay them the remuneration at higher
percentile. Further, as percentage the increase in remuneration of Managerial Personnel was approx 8.84%.

v. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Policy for Remuneration of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited,

Sd/-

Ketan Khant

Chairman and Managing Director

(DIN: 03506163)

Address: 17-34-A, Kutchi House, Brahmanwada Road, Matunga, Mumbai — 400019

Date: August 27, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE 7

Information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014

The details of top ten employees of the Company:

1

2

Name

Ketan Bhupendra Khant

Anjali Ketan Khant

Designation

Managing Director

Whole Time Director

Remuneration paid

Rs. 49,14,000

Rs. 37,80,000

Nature of employment

Executive Director

Executive Director

Qualifications and Experience

Diploma in Chemical Engineering &
Diploma in Marketing Management
and approx 27 years of experience

Diploma in Chemical Engineering &
approx 18 years of vast experience

Date of commencement of

employment

01.04.2012

01.04.2012

Age (In years)

52

51

Previous Employment

Filtra Consultants & Engineers

Filtra Consultants & Engineers

% of Equity Shares

72.96%

72.96%

Whether relative of Director or
employee

Himself is Managing Director and
spouse Mrs. Anjali Khant is Whole-
time Director

Herself is Whole-time Director and
spouse Mr. Ketan Khant is Managing
Director

3

a

Name

Ashfak Hanif Mulla

Ankur Sunil Chandra Bakhai

Designation

Whole Time Director

Vice President Sales, Gujarat

Remuneration paid

Rs. 41,76,000

Rs. 34,00,300

Nature of employment

Executive Director

Permanent

Qualifications and Experience

Mechanical Engineering and approx
25 years of experience

BE in Chemical Engineering and

approx of 17 years of experience

Date of commencement of

employment

01.04.2012

01.04.2014

Age (In years)

53

42

Previous Employment

Filtra Consultants & Engineers

Filtra Consultants & Engineers

% of Equity Shares

0.22%

0.00%

Whether relative of Director or
employee

Himself is Whole- time Director and
wife is Manager Administration and
Human Resource

NA

5

6

Name

Krishnadas Shreedharan Nair

Vijay Francis D Britto

Designation

Manager

Manager

Remuneration paid

Rs. 10,47,756

Rs. 9,50,081

Nature of employment

Permanent

Technical services

Qualifications and Experience

B.Com and approx 22 vyears of
experience

Mechanical Engineer and approx 23
years of experience

Date of commencement of

employment

01.12.2011

01.08.2016

Age (In years)

47

52

Previous Employment

Filtra Consultants & Engineers

lon Exchange India Ltd

% of Equity Shares

0.00%

NA

Whether relative of Director or
employee

NA

NA
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7

Name

Sunil Shankar Rao Gadge

Sudarshan Zade

Designation

Manager Nagpur Branch

Manager Sales

Remuneration paid

Rs. 8,51,800

Rs. 8,18,710

Nature of employment

Permanent

Permanent

Qualifications and Experience

B.Sc. and
experience

approx 21 vyears of

MSc Chemistry, MBA in Marketing
and 10 years of experience.

Date of of

employment

commencement

01.12.2011

01.12.2016

Age (In years)

50

36

Previous Employment

ION Exchange India Ltd

Fivebro International Pvt Ltd

% of Equity Shares

0.00%

NA

Whether relative of Director or
employee

NA

NA

10

Name

Rehanna Mulla

Vaishali Pai

Designation

Manager HR and Admin

Chief Financial Officer

Remuneration paid

Rs. 7,54,380

Rs. 7,52,377

Nature of employment

Permanent

Permanent

Qualifications and Experience

B.A. and
experience

approx 27 vyears of

M.COM and approx 23 years of
experience

Date of of

employment

commencement

24.05.2011

24.05.2011

Age (In years)

48

48

Previous Employment

Filtra Consultants & Engineers

Filtra Consultants & Engineers

% of Equity Shares

0.22% (held by spouse)

NA

Whether relative of Director or
employee

Wife of Whole-time Director Mr.
Ashfak Mulla.

NA

Note: No employees of the Company fall within the limit specified under Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Filtra Consultants and Engineers Limited,

Sd/-

Ketan Khant
Chairman

(DIN: 03506163)
Address: 17-34-A, Kutchi House, Brahmanwada Road, Matunga, Mumbai — 400019

Date: August 27, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO,
THE MEMBERS OF FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statement
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31% March 2021, and the statement of profit and loss, and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March, 2021, and its profit, and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter:

1. The Management believes that no adjustments are required in the Standalone Annual Financial Results as it
does not impact the financial year ended 31% March, 2021, however, in view of the various preventive
measures taken (such as complete lock-down restrictions by the Government of India, travel restrictions etc.)
and highly uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods
is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve.

2. On account of the COVID-19 related lockdown restrictions, management was able to perform year end
physical verification of inventories, only at certain locations, subsequent to the year-end. Also, we were not
able to physically observe the stock verification, where carried out by management. Consequently, we have
performed alternate procedures to audit the existence of inventory as per the guidance provided in SA 501
"Audit Evidence - Specific Considerations for Selected Items" and have obtained sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to issue our unmodified opinion on these Standalone Annual Financial Results.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position , financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Standalone Financial Results of the Company to
express an opinion on the Standalone Financial Statement .

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Standalone Financial Results may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order,2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government

of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. We give in the “Annexure A”
statements on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of aforesaid

54




FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN: L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Tenth Annual Report - 2020-21

standalone financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and the standalone cash
flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31/03/2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 31/03/2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure
B".

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31/03/2021 has been paid/provided
by the company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any litigations pending whose impact required to disclose on its
financial position.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

Date : 22.06.2021 FOR KRUNAL M. SHAH AND CO.
Place : MUMBAI (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :131794W

Sd/-
KRUNAL M. SHAH
Partner
M.No. : 115075
UDIN: 21115075AAAAAK9086
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ANNEXURE -A

Reports under The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (CARO 2016) for the year ended on 31% March
2021
To,

The Members of FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(i) In Respect of Fixed Assets

(@) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals; No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Title Deeds of all Immovable Properties are held in the Name of the Company.

(i) In Respect of Inventories

Physical verification of inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
were not material.
(iii) Compliance under section 189 of The Companies Act, 2013
The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in
the register maintained u/s 189 of the companies Act-2013.Accordingly, clause (iii)(a), (iii)(b), (iii) (c) are not
applicable to the Company for the Current year.

(@) N.A.

(b) N.A.

(c) N.A.
(iv) Compliance under section 185 and 186 of The Companies Act, 2013

The Company has not entered into any transaction for loans, investments, guarantees, and security under
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

(v) Compliance under section 73 to 76 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder while
accepting Deposits

The company has not accepted any Deposits from the Public.

(vi) Maintenance of cost records

The Company is not required to maintain cost records pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government
for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) Deposit of Statutory Dues

(a) The company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income tax, sales, tax wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty. Cess and other
statutory dues applicable to the Company with the appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts payable in
respect of the aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There is no dispute with the revenue authorities regarding any duty or tax payable.
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(viii) Repayment of Loans and Borrowings

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to banks. The Company has not issued
debentures nor borrowed any funds from financial institutions or Government.

(ix)  Utilization of Money Raised by Public Offers and Term Loan For which they Raised

The moneys raised by way of initial public offer were applied for the purpose for which it has been raised by
the company.

(x)  Reporting of Fraud During the Year

Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanation made available to us no such fraud
noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) Managerial Remuneration

Managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

(xii) Compliance by Nidhi Company Regarding Net Owned Fund to Deposits Ratio
As per information and records available with us The company is not Nidhi Company.
(xiii) Related party compliance with Section 177 and 188 of companies Act - 2013
Yes, All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) Compliance under section 42 of Companies Act - 2013 regarding Private placement of Shares or
Debentures

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placements of shares or convertible
debentures during the year under review.

(xv) Compliance under section 192 of Companies Act - 2013

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him

(xvi) Requirement of Registration under 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act.

FOR KRUNAL M. SHAH AND CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Place : MUMBAI Reg No. :131794W
Date :22.06.2021
Sd/-
KRUNAL M. SHAH
(Partner)
Membership No. : 115075
UDIN: 21115075AAAAAK9086
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of
FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED for the year ended 31* March 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND
ENGINEERS LIMITED (“The Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence amount the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend upon on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
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material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issues by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Date : 22.06.2021 FOR KRUNAL M. SHAH AND CO.
Place : MUMBAI (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :131794W

Sd/-
KRUNAL M. SHAH
Partner
M.No. : 115075
UDIN: 21115075AAAAAK9086
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(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 202

FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

1

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share capital

(b) Reserves and surplus

Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Deferred tax liabilities
(c) Other Long- Term liabilities
(d) Long term provisions

Current liabilities
(a) Short Term Liabilities
(b) Trade Payable
(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short Term Provisions

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets
(i) Tangible assets
(ii) Intangible assets
(iif) Capital Work-in-progress
(iv) Intangible assets under devel
(v) Fixed assets held for sale

b) Non-current investment
c) Deferred tax assets

e) Other non-current assets

Current assets
(a) Current investment
b) Inventories
c) Trade receivables
d) Cash and cash equivalents
e) Short-term loans and advance
f) Other current assets

(
(
(
(
(

(c) Money receive againts share warrant -

Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Long- term loans and advances

82,230,000.00
54,825,094.17

82,230,000.00
41,719,855.84

137,055,094.17

5,452,185.00

123,949,855.84

3,258,124.00

5,452,185.00

1,401,849.30
101,799,120.17
8,636,048.72
6,025,000.00

3,258,124.00

7,652,464.50
85,998,665.29
7,337,081.54
6,390,000.00

117,862,018.19

107,378,211.33

260,369,297.36

234,586,191.17

35,121,353.06

opment

34,521,369.78

35,121,353.06
408,000.00
2,543,715.41
1,376,843.00

34,521,369.78
408,000.00
2,228,042.09
1,503,436.00

4,328,558.41

968,990.70
120,496,579.18
80,508,467.95
5,365,598.25

s 13,579,749.81

4,139,478.09

575,578.43
111,902,740.62
65,771,298.33
1,874,097.64
15,801,628.28

TOTAL 220,919,385.89

195,925,343.30

260,369,297.36

234,586,191.17

See accompanying notes forming part
of financial statement
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In terms of our report attached.
For Krunal M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:- 131794W
Sd/-

CA Krunal Shah

Partner

Membership No:- 115075
UDIN: 21115075A A A AAK9086
Place : Mumbai

Date : 22.06.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Ketan Khant Anjali Khant
Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175)

Sd/- Sd/-

Shikha Sunil Chaurasia Vaishali Pai
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Place : Mumbai
Date :22.06.2021

Sd/-

Ashfak Mulla
Whole Time Director
(DIN:03506172)
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS

LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Particulars

Note No.

For the year ended 31
March, 2021

For the year ended 31
March, 2020

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue from operations (gross)
Less :- GST

Revenue from operations (net)

Other Income

Total revenue (1+2)

Expenses

(a) Cost of Materials Consumed

(b) Purchase of Traded goods

(c) Change in Inventories of Finished
Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in
Trade

(d) Employee benefits expenses

(e) Financial Costs

(f) Depreciation and amortisation
expenses

(g) Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and
extraordinary items and tax (3 -4)

Exceptional item

Profit/(Loss) before extraordinary items
and tax (5-6)

Extra ordinary items

Profit/(Loss) before tax (7 - 8)

Tax expense:

(a) Current tax expense for current year
(b) Current tax expense relating to

prior years

(c) Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (9-10)
Earnings per share (of Rs.10/- each):
(a) Basic
(b) Diluted

19

660,395,747.86
94,579,734.16

653,193,027.11
93,633,015.68

565,816,013.70
2,134,703.04

559,560,011.43
1,976,090.66

567,950,716.74

561,536,102.09

480,607,789.08
-8,593,838.56
39,395,987.68
533,292.80
1,624,991.08

35,727,260.65

500,346,365.55
-33,277,784.65
37,860,204.24
797,156.78
1,622,968.69

32,243,274.46

549,295,482.73

539,592,185.07

18,655,234.01

2,19,43,917.02

18,655,234.01

2,19,43,917.02

18,655,234.01

2,19,43,917.02

5,100,000.00
765,669.00

-315,673.32

5,850,000.00
-346,869.00

-435,158.05

5,549,995.68

5,224,569.91

13,105,238.33

16,719,347.11

1.59
1.59

2.03
2.03

See accompanying notes forming part of
financial statement

In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Sd/-
Firm Registration No:- 131794W Ketan Khant

Sd/- Managing Director
CA Krunal Shah (DIN: 03506163)

Partner Sd/-

Sd/-

Anjali Khant
Whole Time Director

sd/-
Ashfak Mulla

(DIN:03506175) (DIN:03506172)

Membership No:- 115075 Shikha Sunil Chaurasia
UDIN: 21115075AAAAAK9086 (Company Secretary)

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : 22.06.2021 Date :22.06.2021

Vaishali Pai
(Chief Financial Officer)

Whole Time Director
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Particulars

For The Year Ended 31 March,

2021

For The Year Ended 31 March,

2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of assets
Financial Cost
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital
changes

Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
(Increase)/Decrease stock

(Increase)/Decrease Trade Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease Short Term Loans & Advances
(Increase)/Decrease Long Term Loans & Advances

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables

Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions

Increase/ (Decrease) in long Term Liabilities

Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Net income tax (paid) / refunds
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets

(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Investment
(Increase)/Decrease in Non Current Investment

Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities(B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Payment of Dividend and Tax Thereon

Net increase/(decrease) in working capital borrowings
Financial Costs
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C)

1,624,991.08

533,292.80

18,655,234.01

2,158,283.88

1,622,968.69

797,156.78

21,943,917.02

2,420,125.47

-8,593,838.56
-14,737,169.62
2,221,878.47
126,593.00

15,800,454.88
-5,465,000.00
2,194,061.00
1,298,967.18

-2,224,974.36
-393,412.27

20,813,517.89

-7,154,053.65

13,659,464.24

13,659,464.24
-765,669.00

12,893,795.24

-2,618,386.63

-33,277,784.65
3,496,363.27
-3,131,603.50
1,201,686.00

-3,355,123.71
-2,400,000.00
-42,069.00
2,342,449.79

-1,404,913.31
9,155,588.87

24,364,042.49

-35,166,081.80

-10,802,039.31

-10,802,039.31
-5,503,131.00

-16,305,170.31

7,750,675.56

-2,618,386.63

7,750,675.56

-6,250,615.20
-533,292.80

-6,783,908.00

-12,391,568.00
7,652,464.50
-797,156.78

-5,536,260.28

-6,783,908.00

-5,536,260.28

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C)

3,491,500.61

-14,090,755.03

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash in hand

Bank Balance

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the
Balance Sheet:

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year *

* Comprises:

(a) Cash on hand

(b) Balances with banks

Cash & cash equivalent considered to cash flow
statement

227,058.40
1,647,039.24

1,874,097.64

5,365,598.25

5,365,598.25

262,489.40
5,103,108.85

508,223.70
15,456,628.97

15,964,852.67

1,874,097.64

1,874,097.64

227,058.40
1,647,039.24

5,365,598.25

1,874,097.64

NOTES: (i) The cash flow statement reflects the combined cash flow pertaining to continuing and

operations.
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(ii) These enmarkes account balance with bank can be utilised for the specific identified purpose.

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statement

In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:- 131794W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Krunal Shah Ketan Khant Anjali Khant Ashfak Mulla
Partner Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director Whole Time Director
Membership No:- 115075 (DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175) (DIN:03506172)
UDIN: 21115075AAAAAK9086 Sd/- Sd/-

Shikha Sunil Chaurasia Vaishali Pai

(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
Note | Particulars

1 Nature of Operations
The Company was Incorporate on 24th May, 2011. The Company Mainly in Trading and Manufacturing Activity of
Water Treatment system Business such as Membrane, Multi port Valve, Cartridge, Vessels, Tank, Pump, Ph Meter,
Orp Meter, Conductivity Meter UV Purifiers, High pressure pumps, pressure switch, level switch and such other
items which used for the purpose of Industrial water treatment plant. The Company Operates through its Business in
Mumbai, Pune, Nagpur, Indore and Ahmedabad.
Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting and in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India. The financial statements have been prepared
to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act, to the extent
applicable.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle to be less than 12 months.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent
liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used
in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these
estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the

results are known / materialise.
Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby loss before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and
item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation has been provided on the written down value method as per the rates prescribed in Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its
useful life. The depreciable amount of an asset is the cost of an asset or other amount substituted for cost, less its
residual value. The useful life of an asset is the period over which an asset is expected to be available for use by an
entity, or the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity. The useful
life of an asset shall not ordinarily different from the useful life specified in Part C and the residual value of an asset
shall not be more than five per cent of the original cost of the asset.”

Asset Useful life

Office equipment 5 years

Computers 3 years

Furniture & fixtures 10 years

Motor vehicles 8 years

Revenue recognition

(a) 'Sales are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership
to the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers.

(b) Gross Sales (net of Return) include VAT/CST, Wherever applicable.

(c) Other Income is recognized on accrual basis.

(d) Dividend Income is recognized when right to receive dividend is established.

(e) Interest Income is recognized when no significant uncertainity as to its realization exists and is accounted for on
time propotion basis at contracted rates.
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(f) Scrap, Salvage/Waste materials and sweepings are accounted for on realization.
(g) Insurance and other miscellaneous claims are recognized on receipt/acceptance of claim. Contractual pass
throught incentives, benefits, etc. are recognized on receipt basis.

Tangible fixed assets, Intangible assets and work-in-progress

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Direct costs are capitalized until
fixed assets are ready for use. Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for
their intended use at the reporting date. Intangible assets are recoded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such
assets and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.

Investments

(i) Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on
which such investments are made are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long
term investments.

(ii) Long term investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than
temporary, in value of each long term investment, where applicable.

(iif) Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value and the resultant decline, if any, is charged to
revenue.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs relating to the acquisition / construction of qualifying assets are capitalised until the time all
substantial activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete. A qualifying asset
is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active
development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Inventories

Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of
extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary
items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity
shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares
are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

Taxes on income

'Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the accounting
income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is
measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and
carry forward of losses are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable
income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing differences of other items only to
the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which these
can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same
governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date for their realisability.

Current and deferred tax relating to items directly recognised in equity are recognised in equity and not in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
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and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes.

Retirement benefits

(i) Short Term Employee Benefit

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of bonus, exgratia, incentives are recognized in the
period during which the employee renders the related service.

(ii) Post-Employment Benefits

(a) Defined Contribution Plans

State Government Provident Fund Scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contribution paid/payable under the
scheme is recognized in the profit & loss account during the period during which the employee renders the related
service.

(b) Defined Benifit Plans

The employee Gratuity Fund Scheme managed by a trust is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation
under such defined benefit plan is determined based on acturial valuation under the projected unit credit method
which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employees benefits entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of
future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit
plans is based on the market yields on government securities as at balance plans the fair value of the planned assets is
reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recognize the obligation on net basis.

(c) The obligation for leave encashment is provided for and paid on yearly basis.

(d) Remeasurement, comprising acturial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of
profit and loss.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on the basis of exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are traslated at the
closing exchange rates on that date. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions during the year
and on restatement of monetary assets and liability are recognized in the profit and loss account of the year.
Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value.An impairment loss is
charged to the profit & Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss
recognised in prior accounting periods is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable account in
subsequent period.

Identification of segments

The operations of the company predominantly comprises of Trading and Manufacturing Activity of Water Treatment
system. This activity constitutes the primary segment and is the only reportable segment.

As per our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:- 131794W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Krunal Shah Ketan Khant Anjali Khant Ashfak Mulla
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)

Note 3.1 Share capital
Particulars As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020
Number of shares Amount (Rs.) |Number of shares | Amount(Rs.)

(a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 | 100,000,000.00
10,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 | 100,000,000.00

(b) Issued
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 8,223,000.00 82,230,000.00 8,223,000.00 82,230,000.00

(c) Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 8,223,000.00 82,230,000.00 8,223,000.00 82,230,000.00
8,223,000.00 82,230,000.00 8,223,000.00 82,230,000.00

Total 8,223,000.00 82,230,000.00 8,223,000.00 82,230,000.00
Note :- The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value Rs. 10/- per share. Each
shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. All share issued without any preferences and restrictions attaching the same
Note 3.2 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting
period:

Particulars Opening Fresh issue Buy Back Closing Balance
Balance

Equity shares with voting rights
Year ended 31 March, 2021
- Number of shares 8,223,000.00 8,223,000.00
- Amount 82,230,000.00 82,230,000.00
Year ended 31 March, 2020
- Number of shares 8,223,000.00 8,223,000.00
- Amount 82,230,000.00 82,230,000.00
Note 3.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020
Number of % holding in Number of % holding in
shares held that class of shares held that class of
shares shares

Class of shares /Name of shareholder

Equity shares:-
Mr. Ketan Khant 4,500,000.00 54.72 4,500,000.00 54.72
Mrs. Anjali Khant 1,499,940.00 18.24 1,499,898.00 18.24
Note 3.4 During the period of five years immediately preceding the date of balance sheet:

(i) The Company has issue bonus shares in the month of August 2015 in the ratio of 1:3 and in the month of April 2016 in the
ratio of 2:3 and in the month of Oct 2018 in the ratio of 5:1

(ii) No allotment on conversion/surrender of Debentures and Bonds, conversion of Term Loans, exercise of warrants, etc.

(iii) No allotment of shares without voting rights.

In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:- 131794W
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note:- 4 Reserves and Surplus

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

(a) Surplus/(deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
Add: Profit for the year
Total

41,719,855.84
13,105,238.33

25,000,508.73
16,719,347.11

41,719,855.84

41,719,855.84

Note:-5 Other Long Term Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

(a) Provisions for Employee Benefits
(i) Provision for Gratuity
Total

5,452,185.00

3,258,124.00

5,452,185.00

3,258,124.00

Note:- 6 Short Term Borrowings

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

(a) Loan from Bank
(i) Cash Credit Bank of Baroda
Total

1,401,849.30

7,652,464.50

1,401,849.30

7,652,464.50

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for Short Term Secured Borrowings :- Bank of Baroda

Primary Security :

(if) Hypothecation of Stock and Book debts

Rate of Interest 10.15% (MCLR +0.25+1.45)
Personal Guarantee of the following directors :-
(i) Mr. Ketan Khant

(if) Mrs. Anjali Khant

(iii) Mr. Ashfak Mulla

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for Short Term Secured Borrowings :- HDFC Bank Ltd Primary Security

(i) Hypothecation on current assets including stock and book debts of Company
Rate of Interest 9.50% (MCLR rate +1.05% Current MCLR rate is 8.45% for one year period)

Collateral Security:

(i) Equitable Mortgage of the Plot No W 27, T-Block, Bhosari, MIDC, Taluka-Haveli, Pune 411026

Note : The company has not utilised Cash Credit facility from HDFC Bank Ltd at the end of the year.

Note:- 7 Trade Payables

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

Creditors for Goods and Services
(i) total outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, small and Medium
enterprises.
Total

29,118,947.01
72,680,173.16

25,949,019.21
60,049,646.08

101,799,120.17

85,998,665.29

(i) The year end balance of sundry creditors are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

Note:- 8 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

(a) Other payables

Statutory remittances

Advance Received From Customers

Other Expenses

Deposit Received From Customers
Total

905,058.79
4,635,453.68
3,095,536.25

846,574.70
2,828,036.84
3,662,470.00

8,636,048.72

7,337,081.54

Note:- 9 Short Term Provisions

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

Provision For Income Tax

Provision for Audit Fees

Provision for Dividend and Tax Thereon
Total

5,100,000.00
925,000.00

5,850,000.00
540,000.00

6,025,000.00

6,390,000.00
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Note:- 11 Non Current Investment

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

Unquoted

Innovative Technocare Pvt Ltd (20,400 Eq shares of Rs.10 Each, Previous year
Nil)
Of Water Pvt Ltd (20,400 Eq shares of Rs.10 Each, Previous year Nil)

Total

204,000.00

204,000.00

204,000.00

204,000.00

408,000.00

408,000.00

Note:- 12 Deferred Tax Assets

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

Deferred tax (liability) / asset
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Assets

Opening Balance
Related to Fixed Assets and Others

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Assets

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Net deferred tax (liability) / asset

2,228,042.09
315,673.32

1,949,481.00
278,561.09

2,543,715.41

2,228,042.09

2,543,715.41

2,228,042.09

Note:- 13 Long - Term Loans and Advances

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

(a) Security Deposit :
Unsecured, Consider Good
Total

1,376,843.00

1,503,436.00

1,376,843.00

1,503,436.00

Note:- 14 Current Investment

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

Birla Sun Life Cash Plus Growth
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Aggregate market value of listed and quoted investments

968,990.70

575,578.43

968,990.70

575,578.43

968,990.70

575,578.43

973,465.17

601,758.60

Note:- 15 Inventories (As certified by the Management)

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

Traded and Finished Goods

Total

120,496,579.18

111,902,740.62

120,496,579.18

111,902,740.62

Note:- 16 Trade Receivable

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

(a) Trade Receivable outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they were due for payment
(b) Others Trade Receivable :

Unsecured, Considered Good

Total

2,246,382.40

78,262,085.42

3,689,351.26

62,081,947.07

80,508,467.82

69,267,661.60

(i) The year end balance of sundry Debtors are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

Note:- 17 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

(a) Cash in hand
(b) Balances with Banks

262,489.40
5,103,108.55

227,058.40
1,647,039.24

Total

5,365,598.25

1,874,097.64

Note:- 18 Short Term Loans and Advances

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

(a) Loan & Advances To Employees
(b) Balance With Government Authorities
(c) Fixed Deposit with Bank and Accrued Interest Thereon (Margin against
LC/BG issued)
(d) Advance to Suppliers and others
Total

983,159.00
6,760,727.15

4,551,457.06
1,284,406.60

739,683.00
6,746,627.97

2,739,100.00
5,576,217.31

13,579,749.81

15,801,628.28
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note:- 19 Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2021

For the year ended 31
March, 2020

(a) Sale of Goods
(b) Sale of Services
Less: -GST/VAT
Total

656,968,150.12
3,427,597.74
94,579,734.16

65,06,80,693.86
25,12,333.25
9,36,33,015.68

565,816,013.70

559,560,011.43

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2021

For the year ended 31
March, 2020

(a) Sale of Goods
Trading Goods
Filter Items
Manufacturing Goods
Filter Items

Total- Sale of Traded Goods

614,553,310.28

42,414,839.84

640,469,093.40

10,211,600.50

656,968,150.12

650,680,693.90

Note:- 20 Other Income

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2021

For the year ended 31
March, 2020

Operational Income
Discount Received
Round Off
Miscelleneous Receipt
Gain/Loss in Exchange

Non Operational Income
Interest Received

Profit on Sale of Investments

Total

1,625,564.48
588.15
63,028.04
224,391.10

11,71,289.61
529.74
89,301.00
76,263.18

1,913,571.77

1,337,383.53

127719.00
93,412.27

19,296.00
6,19,411.13

221,131.27

14,19,129.38

2,134,703.04

19,76,090.66

Note:- 21 Purchase of Traded Goods

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2020

For the year ended 31
March, 2019

Traded and Finished Goods

Total

480,607,789.08

50,03,46,365.55

480,607,789.08

50,03,46,365.55

Note:- 22 Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2021

For the year ended 31
March, 2020

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods

Less:- Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods
Less : Input Credit avail in GST

Net (Increase)/ Decrease

120,496,579.18

11,19,02,740.62

120,496,579.18

111,902,740.62

11,19,02,740.62

7,86,24,955.97

111,902,740.62

7,86,24,955.97

-8,593,838.56

-3,32,77,784.65

Note:- 23 Employee Benefits expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2021

For the year ended 31
March, 2020

Salaries and wages
Contribution to PF and Gratuity
Staff welfare expenses

Total

37,585,809.00
1,283,453.29
526,725.39

3,61,70,769.00
11,76,363.70
5,13,071.54

39,395,987.68

3,78,60,204.24
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Note:- 24 Financial Costs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 31

31 March, 2021 March, 2020
Bank Charges and Interest Expenses 533,292.80 7,97,156.78
Total 533,292.80 7,97,156.78

Note:- 25 Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 31

31 March, 2021 March, 2020
Gain/Loss in Exchange 0.00 0.00
Bad Debts - 1,471,779.00
Repairs & Maintenance 1,483,677.60 2,049,193.85
Conveyance Expenses 809,135.27 1,056,376.99
Electricity Charges 431,313.47 433,128.00
Legal & Professional Charges 5,226,808.00 4,829,079.00
Postage, Courier & Transportation Charges 5,966,833.04 6,064,485.99
Printing & Stationery 120,108.01 255,356.85
Office Expenses 722,654.59 8,58,828.20
Rent, Rates & Taxes 8,459,846.00 60,65,553.00
Telephone Expenses 372,033.31 4,40,926.50
Travelling Expenses (Including Foreign Travelling) 199,962.69 12,96,218.91
Insurance 136,202.00 89,992.00
Books & Periodicals 27,564.00 67,427.00
Audit Fees 1,000,000.00 6,00,000.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 913,640.30 5,39,263.74
E commerce 256,613.00 51,285.11
Advertisement Expenses 156,625.00 86,487.00
Sales Promotion Expenses 2,086,988.00 1,82,951.42
Commission 7,255,062.00 55,29,806.00
Discount Allowed 77,194.37 2,48,083.90
Loss on sale of Fixed Asset -
Donation

- 2,052.00
Listing Fees 25,000.00 25,000.00
Total 35,727,260.65 3,22,43,274.46
Notes: 25(i)

For the year ended For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March, 2021 March, 2020

(i) Payments to the auditors comprises (net of service tax/GST
input credit, where applicable):

As auditors - statutory audit 7,00,000.00 4,00,000.00
For taxation matters 3,00,000.00 2,00,000.00
Total 1,000,000.00 6,00,000.00
In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:- 131794W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Krunal Shah Ketan Khant Anjali Khant Ashfak Mulla
Partner Managing Director = Whole Time Director Whole Time Director
Membership No:- 115075 (DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175) (DIN:03506172)
UDIN: 21115075AAAAAK9086

Sd/- Sd/-

Shikha Sunil Chaurasia Vaishali Pai

(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 22.06.2021 Date :22.06.2021
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note:-

26 Earning per share

Note

Particulars

For the year
ended 31
March, 2021

For the year
ended 31
March, 2020

26

Earnings per share

Basic

Continuing operations

Net profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations

Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon

Net profit /(Loss) for the year from continuing operations attributable to the equity
shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares

Par value per share

Earnings per share from continuing operations - Basic

Total operations

Net profit/(Loss) for the year

Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon

Net profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares

Par value per share

Earnings per share - Basic

Basic Earnings per share (excluding extraordinary items)

Continuing operations

Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations

(Add) / Less: Extraordinary items (net of tax) relating to continuing operations
Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon

Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations attributable to the equity
shareholders, excluding extraordinary items

Weighted average number of equity shares

Par value per share

Earnings per share from continuing operations, excluding extraordinary items -
Basic

Total operations

Net profit / (loss) for the year

(Add) / Less: Extraordinary items (net of tax)

Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon

Net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to the equity shareholders, excluding
extraordinary items

Weighted average number of equity shares

Par value per share

Earnings per share, excluding extraordinary items - Basic

Diluted Earnings per share

Details are not provided since The Company does not have outstanding Warrants,
Stock Options and Convertible bonds oustanding at the end of the year.

13,105,238.33
0.00

16,719,347.11
0.00

13,105,238.33
8,223,000.00
10.00

1.59

16,719,347.11
8,223,000.00
10.00

2.03

13,105,238.33

16,719,347.11

13,105,238.33
8,223,000.00
10.00

1.59

16,719,347.11
8,223,000.00
10.00

2.03

13,105,238.33
0.00
0.00

16,719,347.11
0.00
0.00

13,105,238.33
8,223,000.00
10.00

1.59

16,719,347.11
8,223,000.00
10.00

2.03

13,105,238.33
0.00
0.00

16,719,347.11
0.00
0.00

13,105,238.33
82,23,000.00
10.00

1.59

1,67,19,347.11
82,23,000.00
10.00

2.03

In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:- 131794W

sd/-

CA Krunal Shah

Partner

Membership No:- 115075
UDIN: 21115075A AAAAK9086
Place : Mumbai

Date : 22.06.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Ketan Khant Anjali Khant
Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175)

Sd/- Sd/-

Shikha Sunil Chaurasia Vaishali Pai
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Place : Mumbai
Date :22.06.2021

Sd/-

Ashfak Mulla
Whole Time Director
(DIN:03506172)
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)

Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note:- 27 Related Party Disclosures

Note | Particulars

27 | Related party transactions
27.1.a | Details of related parties:
Description of relationship

Names of related parties

Ketan Khant

Anjali Khant

Ashfak Mulla

Vaishali Pai

ShikhaChaurasia

Innovative Technocare Private Limited
Subsidiary Company Of Water Private Limited

Relatives of KMP Rehana Mulla

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31 March, 2021 and balances outstanding
as at 31 March, 2021:

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
)
)

Key Management Personnel (KMP
Key Management Personnel (KMP
Subsidiary Company

Relative of

Transaction during the year

KMP

Subsidiary Co

KMP

Total

Salary

13,892,413.00
(13,070,337.00)

0.00
(0.00)

754,380.00
(754,380.00)

14,646,793.00
(13,824,717.00)

Rent

2,640,000.00
(1,248,000.00)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

2,640,000.00
(1,248,000.00)

Purchase of Goods

0.00
(0.00)

68,297.22
(79,200.00)

0.00
(0.00)

68,297.22
(79,200.00)

Sale of Goods

0.00
(0.00)

510,849.10
(752,490.70)

0.00
(0.00)

510,849.10
(752,490.70)

Balances outstanding at the end of the

year

KMP

Subsidiary Co

Relative of
KMP

Total

Salary

942,804.00
(1,058,037.00)

0.00
(0.00)

50,769.00
(62,865.00)

993,573.00
(1,120,902.00)

Rent

1,017,500.00
(104,000.00)

0.00
(0.00)

0.00
(0.00)

1,017,500.00
(104,000.00)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 56,368.00 0.00 56,368.00

(0.00) (69,290.70) (0.00) (69,290.70)

Note: Figures in bracket relates to the previous year
In terms of our report attached.
For Krunal M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:- 131794W
Sd/-

CA Krunal Shah

Partner

Membership No:- 115075

UDIN: 21115075AAAAAK9086

Purchase of Goods

Sale of Goods

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Ketan Khant
Managing Director
(DIN: 03506163)

Sd/-

Anjali Khant

Whole Time Director
(DIN:03506175)

Sd/-

Ashfak Mulla

Whole Time Director
(DIN:03506172)

Sd/-

Shikha Sunil Chaurasia
(Company Secretary)
Place : Mumbai

Date :22.06.2021

Sd/-
Vaishali Pai
(Chief Financial Officer)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 22.06.2021
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note:- 28

28.1

Employee benefit plans
Defined benefit plans

The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:

i. Gratuity

The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount

recognised in the financial statements:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2021

For the year ended 31
March, 2020

Gratuity

Gratuity

Components of employer expense

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Curtailment cost / (credit)

Settlement cost / (credit)

Past service cost

Actuarial losses/ (gains)

Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss

1,112,127
44,907
-188,542

-289,558
1,081,934

1,054,230
442,671
-179,420

-366,074
951,407

Actual contribution and benefit payments for year
Actual benefit payments
Actual contributions

Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)]

Unrecognised past service costs

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

8,014,195
2,562,010
-5,452,185

-5,452,185

6,694,349
2,324,098
-4,370,251

-4,370,251

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2021

For the year ended 31
March, 2020

Gratuity

Gratuity

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO)
during the year

Present value of DBO at beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Curtailment cost / (credit)

Settlement cost / (credit)

Plan amendments

Acquisitions

Actuarial (gains) / losses

Past service cost

Benefits paid

Present value of DBO at the end of the year

6,694,349
1,112,127
447,907

-107,034

-133,154
8,014,195

5,748,972
1,054,230
442,671

-472,755

-78,769
6,694,349

Change in fair value of assets during the year
Plan assets at beginning of the year
Acquisition adjustment

Expected return on plan assets

2,324,098

1,88,542.00

2,330,128

179,420




FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN: L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Tenth Annual Report - 2020-21

Actuarial gain / (loss)
Benefits paid

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate

Salary escalation

Actual company contributions

Plan assets at the end of the year 2,562,010
Actual return on plan assets

Expected return on plan assets 6.45%

182,524.00
-133,154.00

6.45%

7.00%

-106,681
-78,769
2,324,098

6.80%
6.80%
7.00%

In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:- 131794W
Sd/-

CA Krunal Shah

Partner

Membership No:- 115075

UDIN: 21115075AAAAAK9086

Place : Mumbai
Date : 22.06.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Ketan Khant Anjali Khant Ashfak Mulla
Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175) (DIN:03506172)

Sd/- Sd/-
Shikha Sunil Chaurasia Vaishali Pai
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Place : Mumbai
Date :22.06.2021
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Note:- 29 Notes forming part of the financial statements

29.1

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Note | Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2021

For the year ended
31 March, 2020

I Contingent liabilities
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

(b) Guarantees

(c) Letter of Credit issued to supplier

NIL
4,000,000.00
1,763,204.30

NIL
4,000,000.00
14,151,211.80

5,763,204.30

18,151,211.80

Commitments

The Company has not provided any contractual commitment as on date which will have material
effect on the financial statement of the company

Details of Transaction in foreign Currency on account of:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March, 2021

For the year ended
31 March, 2020

(i) Export

(iii) Import

(ii) Foreign Travelling

311,861.29

21,253,659.42

6,948,911.59
348,647.61
19,796,402.70

21,565,520.71

27,093,961.90

Previous year's figures
Particulars
Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the
current year's classification / disclosure.
BALANCES OF TRADE DEBTORS, CREDITORS AND LOANS & ADVANCES
Sundry Debtors and Creditors, Loans and advances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation No
provision has been made for the doubtful Debts, Loans and Advances as they are considered good for
recovery.
In terms of Section 22 of the Micro, small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006, the
outstanding to these enterprises are required to be disclosed. However, these enterprises are required
to be registered under the Act. The amounts due to such suppliers if any, have been identified to the
extent such information is provided by the supplier.
In the opinion of the Board
a) The realization value of all assets other than fixed and non current investments in the ordinary course
of business, would not be less than the amount at which they are stated
b) Adequate Provisions have been made for all known liabilities and there is no other undisclosed
liabilities and there is no other undisclosed liabilities of contigent nature.

c) All the expenses paid/provided have been incurred for the purpose of the business of the company.
In terms of our report attached.
For Krunal M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:- 131794W
Sd/-
CA Krunal Shah
Partner
Membership No:- 115075
UDIN: 21115075AAAAAK9086

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-

Ketan Khant
Managing Director
(DIN: 03506163)

sd/-

Anjali Khant

Whole Time Director
(DIN:03506175)
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Ashfak Mulla

Whole Time Director
(DIN:03506172)

Sd/-

Shikha Sunil Chaurasia
(Company Secretary)
Place : Mumbai

Date :22.06.2021

Sd/-

Vaishali Pai

(Chief Financial Officer)
Place : Mumbai
Date : 22.06.2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO,
THE MEMBERS OF FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statement
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial Statement of Filtra Consultants and Engineers
Limited (“ the Holding Company”), comprising of its subsidiaries ( together, “ the Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2021, and the Consolidated statement of profit and loss, and
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, and its Consolidated profit, and its Consolidated cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter:

1. The Management believes that no adjustments are required in the Consolidated Financial statements as it
does not impact the financial year ended 31" March, 2021, however, in view of the various preventive
measures taken (such as complete lock-down restrictions by the Government of India, travel restrictions etc.)
and highly uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods
is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve.

2. On account of the COVID-19 related lockdown restrictions, management was able to perform year end
physical verification of inventories, only at certain locations, subsequent to the year-end. Also, we were not
able to physically observe the stock verification, where carried out by management. Consequently, we have
performed alternate procedures to audit the existence of inventory as per the guidance provided in SA 501
"Audit Evidence - Specific Considerations for Selected Items" and have obtained sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to issue our unmodified opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

79
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the Consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated State of affairs ( consolidated financial position) ,
Consolidated profit or loss ( consolidated financial performance ) and consolidated cash flows of the Group
including its subsidiaries in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of accounting
records including financial information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements. Further, in terms of the provision of the Act, the respective management of the companies
included in the Group and its subsidiaries covered under the act are responsible for maintenance of adequate
records in accordance with the provision of the act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the holding company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results/financial information of the
entities within the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, to express an opinion on the consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial
information of such entities included in the consolidated financial results of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Results

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(i)
()

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.
The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the consolidated
cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding company as on
31/03/2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding company ,none of the directors
is disqualified as 31/03/2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries companies and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in "Annexure A".

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31/03/2021 has been paid/provided
by the company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Group does not have any litigations pending whose impact required to disclose on its
financial position.

The Group has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group.

Date : 22.06.2021 FOR KRUNAL M. SHAH AND CO.
Place : MUMBAI (Chartered Accountants)

Reg No. :131794W

Sd/-
KRUNAL M. SHAH
Partner
M.No. : 115075
UDIN: 21115075AAAAAL9225
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED for the year ended 31* March 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Filtra Consultants and Engineers
Limited (“the Holding Company”), comprising of its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”), for the year ended
31st March 2021. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Holding company
and its subsidiaries which are companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its two subsidiaries which are companies covered
under the Act are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Holding company and its subsidiaries based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence amount the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend upon on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Group ’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
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management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies covered under the Act, have, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issues by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Date : 22.06.2021 FOR KRUNAL M. SHAH AND CO.
Place : MUMBAI (Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :131794W

Sd/-
KRUNAL M. SHAH
Partner
M.No. : 115075
UDIN: 2115075AAAAAL9225
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN: L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2021

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

A
1

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share capital

(b) Reserves and surplus

(c) Money receive against share warrant

Share Application Money Pending
Allotment
Minority Interest
Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Deferred tax liabilities
(c) Other Long- Term liabilities
(d) Long term provisions

Current liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings
(b) Trade Payable
(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short Term Provisions

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Tangible assets
(ii) Intangible assets
(iii) Capital Work-in-progress
(iv) Intangible assets under development
(v) Fixed assets held for sale

b) Non-current investment

c) Deferred tax assets

d) Long- term loans and advances
e) Other non-current assets

(
(
(
(

Current assets
(a) Current investment
(b) Inventories
(c) Trade receivables
(d) Cash and cash equivalents
(e) Short-term loans and advances
(f) Other current assets
TOTAL

82,230,000.00
55,410,326.31

82,230,000.00
42,114,873.53

137,640,326.31

954,282.28
633,300.00

5,485,185.00

124,344,873.53

771,527.22
632,310.00

3,269,124.00

7,072,767.28

1,401,849.30
102,169,144.17
8,834,031.98
6,300,625.00

4,672,961.22

7,652,464.50
86,362,277.63
7,559,703.74
6,632,500.00

118,705,650.45

108,206,945.87

263,418,744.04

237,224,780.62

35,216,450.85

34,558,069.92

35,216,450.85

2,542,704.09
1,376,843.00

34,558,069.92

2,227,835.13
1,503,436.00

3,919,547.09

968,990.70
12,187,950.46
80,766,198.82

7,375,228.43
13,784,378.01

3,731,271.13

575,578.43
113,155,340.80
6,59,57,132.63
3,190,469.89
16,056,917.82

224,282,746.55

198,935,439.57

263,418,744.36

237,224,780.62

In terms of our report attached.
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For Krunal M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Sd/- Sd/- Sdy/-

Firm Registration No:- 131794W Ketan Khant Anjali Khant Ashfak Mulla

Sd/- Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director =~ Whole Time Director
CA Krunal Shah (DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175) (DIN:03506172)
Partner Sd/- Sdy/-

Membership No:- 115075 Shikha Sunil Chaurasia Vaishali Pai

UDIN: 21115075AAAAAL9225 (Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021 Date: 22.06.2021
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Particulars Note No.

For the year
ended 31 Mar
2021

For the year

ended 31 Mar 2020

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenue from operations (gross)

Less :- GST

Revenue from operations (net)

Other Income

Total revenue (1+2)

Expenses

(a) Cost of Materials Consumed

(b) Purchase of Traded goods

(c) Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in
Progress and Stock in Trade

(d) Employee benefits expenses

(e) Financial Costs

(f) Depreciation and amortisation expenses

(g) Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary
items and tax (3-4)

Exceptional item

Profit/(Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (5 - 6)
Extra ordinary items

Profit/(Loss) before tax (7 - 8)

Tax expense:

(a) Current tax expense for current year

(b) Current tax expense relating to prior years

(c) Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

674,284,345.04
-96,698,319.91

664,761,716.94
95,397,797.38

577,586,025.13
2,136,973.12

569,363,919.56
1,980,292.57

579,722,998.25

571,344,212.13

487,049,276.55

(8,232,609.66)
41,355,447.92
607,499.65
1,641,144.29
38,124,612.51

505,652,143.81

(33,715,297.83)
39,841,652.45
870,608.78
1,632,237.78
34,676,024.21

560,545,371.36

548,957,369.20

19,177,626.89

22,386,842.93

19,177,626.89

22,386,842.93

19,177,626.89

22,386,842.93

5,250,000.00
764,288.00
(314,868.95)

5,970,000.00
(371,229.00)
(436,374.18)

Profit / (Loss) after Tax (9-10)
Profit (loss) of minority interest
Profit (Loss) for the period after minority interest and
Tax
Earnings per share (of Rs.10/- each):
(a) Basic
(b) Diluted

5,699,419.05

5,321,633.00

13,478,207.84

17,065,209.93

182,755.06
13,295,452.78

1.62
1.62

169,473.00
16,895,736.93

2.05
2.05

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statement

1TO 29

In terms of our report attached.
For Krunal M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:- 131794W
Sd/-

CA Krunal Shah

Partner

Membership No:- 115075

UDIN: 21115075AAAAAL9225

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-

Ketan Khant Anjali Khant
Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175)

Sd/- Sd/-

Shikha Sunil Chaurasia Vaishali Pai
(Company Secretary)

Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021

Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021

Sdy/-

Ashfak Mulla

Whole Time Director
(DIN:03506172)

(Chief Financial Officer)
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)

Cash Flow Consolidated Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Particulars

For The Year Ended 31 Mar

2021

For The Year Ended 31 Mar
2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of assets
Financial Cost

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
(Increase)/Decrease stock
(Increase)/Decrease Trade Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease Short Term Loans & Advances
(Increase)/Decrease Long Term Loans & Advances

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables

Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions

Increase/ (Decrease) in Long Term Liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities

1,641,144.29

607,499.65

19,177,626.89

2,248,643.94

1,632,237.78

870,608.78

22,386,842.93

2,502,846.56

-8,232,609.66
-14,809,066.19
2,272,539.81
126,593.00

15,806,866.98
-5,581,875.00
2,216,061.00
1,274,328.24

21,426,270.83

-6,927,161.95

-33,715,297.83
3,537,138.07
-3,367,005.80
1,201,686.00

-3,616,486.82
-2,380,000.00
-31,069.00
2,340,549.30

24,889,689.49

-36,030,486.52

Cash generated from operations

14,499,108.88

-11,140,797.03

Net income tax (paid) / refunds

-764,288.00

-5,598,771.00

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets

(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Investment
(Increase)/ Decrease in Non Current Investment

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Payment of Dividend and Tax Thereon
Proceeds from long-term unsecured borrowings

Net increase / (decrease) in working capital borrowings

Financial Costs
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C)

-2,299,525.22
-393,412.27

990.00
-6,250,615.20
-607,499.65

13,734,820.88

-2,692,937.49

-2,692,937.49

-6,857,124.85

-1,415,797.31
9,155,588.87

-12,391,568.00
20,416.00
7,652,464.50
-870,608.78

-16,739,568.03

7,739,791.56

7,739,791.56

-5,589,296.28

-6,857,124.85

-5,589,296.28

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C)

4,184,758.67

-14,589,072.75

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash in hand

Bank Balance

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

254,692.35
2,935,777.54

3,190,469.89

7,375,228.56

512,552.20
17,266,990.00

17,779,542.20

3,190,469.45

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the
Balance Sheet:

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year *

* Comprises:

(a) Cash on hand

(b) Balances with banks

Cash & Cash equivalent considered to cash flow
statement

7,375,228.43

294,869.35
7,080,359.08

7,375,228.43

3,190,469.89

254,692.35
2,935,777.54

3,190,469.89

NOTES: (i) The cash flow statement reflects the combined cash flow pertaining to continuing and

operations.
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| (if) These enmarkes account balance with bank can be utilised for the specific identified purpose.

See accompanying notes forming part of financial statement | 1TO29
In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Sdy/- Sd/- Sdy/-

Firm Registration No:- 131794W Ketan Khant Anjali Khant Ashfak Mulla

Sd/- Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director = Whole Time Director
CA Krunal Shah (DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175) (DIN:03506172)
Partner Sd/- Sd/-

Membership No:- 115075 Shikha Sunil Chaurasia Vaishali Pai
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Consolidated Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note

Particulars

1

Nature of Operations

The Company was Incorporate on 24th May, 2011. The Company Mainly in Trading and
Manufacturing Activity of Water Treatment system Business such as Membrane, Multi port Valve,
Cartridge, Vessels, Tank, Pump, Ph Meter, Orp Meter, Conductivity Meter UV Purifiers, High
pressure pumps, pressure switch, level switch and such other items which used for the purpose of
Industrial water treatment plant. The Company Operates through its Business in Mumbai, Pune,
Nagpur, Indore and Ahmedabad.

Significant accounting policies

(i)Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Filtra Consultants
and Engineers Limited and its Subsidiary Innovative Technocare Private Limited and Of Water
Private Limited. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (‘Indian GAAP’) to comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis,
except in case of assets for which provision for impairment for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair value.

(ii) Presentation and disclosure of financial statements:

During the year end 31st March 2021, the group has presented the consolidated financial
statements as per the Schedule (III) notified under the Companies Act, 2013. The group has also
reclassified the previous year’s figures in accordance with the requirements applicable in the
current year.

(iii) Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standard 21 - ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, Accounting Standard 23 - ‘Accounting for
Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements” as notified by the Rules.

The consolidated financial statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as
that adopted by the Company for its standalone financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances and necessary adjustments required for
deviations, if any to the extent possible unless otherwise stated, are made in the consolidated
financial statements and are presented in the same manner as the Company’s standalone financial
statements.

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been combined on a line-by-line
basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses,
after eliminating intra group balances and intra group transactions. The unrealised profits or
losses resulting from the intra group transactions and intra group balances have been eliminated.
Share of minority interest, if any in the net profit is adjusted against the income to arrive at the net
income attributable to shareholders of the parent Company. Minority interest’s share of net assets
is presented separately in the balance sheet.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the
year. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements
are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences
between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are
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known / materialise.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby loss before extraordinary items and
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or
future cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation has been provided on the written down value method as per the rates prescribed in
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the
depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. The depreciable amount of an asset is the cost
of an asset or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value. The useful life of an asset is
the period over which an asset is expected to be available for use by an entity, or the number of
production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity. The useful life of
an asset shall not ordinarily different from the useful life specified in Part C and the residual value
of an asset shall not be more than five per cent of the original cost of the asset.”

Asset Useful life

Office equipment 5 years

Computers 3 years

Furniture & fixtures 10 years

Motor vehicles 8 years

Revenue recognition

(a) 'Sales are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to
customers.

(b) Gross Sales (net of Return) include VAT/CST, Wherever applicable.

(c) Other Income is recognized on accrual basis.

(d) Dividend Income is recognized when right to receive dividend is established.

(e) Interest Income is recognized when no significant uncertainity as to its realization exists and is
accounted for on time propotion basis at contracted rates.

(f) Scrap, Salvage/ Waste materials and sweepings are accounted for on realization.

(g) Insurance and other miscellaneous claims are recognized on receipt/acceptance of claim.

Contractual pass throught incentives, benefits, etc. are recognized on receipt basis.

Tangible fixed assets, Intangible assets and work-in-progress

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Direct costs
are capitalized until fixed assets are ready for use. Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost
of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date. Intangible assets
are recoded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment.

Investments

(i) Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year
from the date on which such investments are made are classified as current investments. All other
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investments are classified as long term investments.

(ii) Long term investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution is made to recognise a
decline, other than temporary, in value of each long term investment, where applicable.

(iif) Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value and the resultant decline, if any,
is charged to revenue.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs relating to the acquisition / construction of qualifying assets are capitalised until
the time all substantial activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use
are complete. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the
qualifying assets is interrupted.

Inventories

Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post
tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit /
(loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings
per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the

beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

Taxes on income

'Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset
if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT
is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit
associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income
and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
substantially enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing
differences. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses
are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income
available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing differences of other
items only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which these can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if
such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Company has
a legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date for their realisability.
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Current and deferred tax relating to items directly recognised in equity are recognised in equity
and not in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not
discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle
the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes.

Retirement benefits

(i) Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of bonus,
exgratia, incentives are recognized in the period during which the employee renders the related
service.

(ii) Post-Employment Benefits

(a) Defined Contribution Plans

State Government Provident Fund Scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contribution
paid/payable under the scheme is recognized in the profit & loss account during the period
during which the employee renders the related service.

(b) Defined Benifit Plans

The employee Gratuity Fund Scheme managed by a trust is a defined benefit plan. The present
value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on acturial valuation
under the projected unit credit method which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employees benefits entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of future cash flows. The
discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit
plans is based on the market yields on government securities as at balance plans the fair value of
the planned assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to
recognize the obligation on net basis.

(c) The obligation for leave encashment is provided for and paid on yearly basis.

(d) Remeasurement, comprising acturial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on the basis of exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as
at the balance sheet date are traslated at the closing exchange rates on that date. Exchange
differences arising on foreign exchange transactions during the year and on restatement of

monetary assets and liability are recognized in the profit and loss account of the year.

Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value.
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An impairment loss is charged to the profit & Loss Account in the year in which an asset is

identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting periods is

reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable account in subsequent
period.

Identification of segments

The operations of the company predominantly comprises of Trading and Manufacturing Activity
of Water Treatment system. This activity constitutes the primary segment and is the only
reportable segment.

In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Sd/- Sd/- Sdy/-

Firm Registration No:- 131794W Ketan Khant Anjali Khant Ashfak Mulla

Sd/- Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director = Whole Time Director

CA Krunal Shah (DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175) (DIN:03506172)

Partner Sdy/- Sd/-

Membership No:- 115075 Shikha Sunil Chaurasia Vaishali Pai

UDIN: 21115075AAAAAL9225 (Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)

Place :Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021 Date: 22.06.2021
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)

Consolidated Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note 3.1 Share capital

Particulars

Asat31 M

arch, 2021

As at 31

March, 2020

Number of
shares

Amount(Rs.)

Number of
shares

Amount(Rs.)

(a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

10,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

10,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

(b) Issued
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each

10,000,000.00

8,223,000.00

100,000,000.00

82,230,000.00

10,000,000.00

8,223,000.00

100,000,000.00

82,230,000.00

(c) Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each

8,223,000.00

82,230,000.00

8,223,000.00

82,230,000.00

8,223,000.00

82,230,000.00

8,223,000.00

82,230,000.00

Total

8,223,000.00

82,230,000.00

8,223,000.00

82,230,000.00

Note :- The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value Rs. 10/- per share. Each
shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. All share issued without any preferences and restrictions attaching the same

Note 3.2 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting

period:

Particulars

Opening
Balance

Fresh issue

Buy Back

Closing Balance

Equity shares with voting rights
Year ended 31 March, 2021

- Number of shares

- Amount

Year ended 31 March, 2020

- Number of shares

- Amount

8,223,000
82,230,000

8,223,000
82,230,000

8,223,000.00
82,230,000.00

8,223,000.00
82,230,000.00

Note 3.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more th

an 5% shares:

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31

March, 2020

Class of shares /Name of shareholder

Number of
shares held

% holding in
that class of
shares

Number of
shares held

% holding in
that class of
shares

Equity shares:-

Mr. Ketan Khant

4,500,000.00

54.72

4,500,000.00

54.72

Mrs. Anjali Khant

18.24

1,499,940.00

1,499,898.00

18.24

Note 3.4 During the period of five years immediately preceding the date of balance sheet:

(i) The Company has issue bonus shares in the month of August 2015 in the ratio of 1:3 and in the month of April 2016 in the
ratio of 2:3 and in the month of Oct 2018 in the ratio of 5:1
(ii) No allotment on conversion/surrender of Debentures and Bonds, conversion of Term Loans, exercise of warrants, etc.

(iii) No allotment of shares without voting rights.

In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Sd/-

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Firm Registration No:- 131794W
Sd/-

CA Krunal Shah

Partner

Membership No:- 115075

UDIN: 21115075AAAAAL9225

Place :Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021

Ketan Khant
Managing Director
(DIN: 03506163)
Sd/-

Shikha Sunil Chaurasia
(Company Secretary)

Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021

Ashfak Mulla
Whole Time Director
(DIN:03506172)

Anjali Khant

Whole Time Director
(DIN:03506175)

Sd/-

Vaishali Pai
(Chief Financial Officer)
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)

Consolidated Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note:- 4 Reserves and Surplus

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar 2020

(a) Surplus/(deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
Add: Profit for the year

42,114,873.97
13,295,452.78

25,219,137.04
16,895,736.93

Total

55,410,326.75

4,21,14,873.97

Note:- 5 Other Long Term Borrowings

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar 2020

(a) Unsecured Loan
(i) Chandan Mantri
(i) Ketan Khant

316,650.00
316,650.00

316,155.00
316,155.00

Total

633,300.00

632,310.00

Note:- 6 Other Long Term Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar 2020

(a) Provisions for Employee Benefits
(i) Provision for Gratuity
(ii) Security Deposits

5,452,185.00
33,000.00

3,258,124.00
11,000.00

Total

5,485,185.00

3,269,124.00

Note:- 7 Short Term Borrowings

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar 2020

(a) Loan from Bank
(i) Cash Credit - Bank of Baroda

1,401,849.30

7,652,464.50

Total

1,401,849.30

7,652,464.50

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for Short Term Secured Borrowings :- Bank of Baroda

Primary Security:

(ii) Hypothecation of Stock and Book debts

Rate of Interest 10.15% (MCLR +0.25+1.45)
Personal Guarantee of the following directors :-
(i) Mr. Ketan Khant

(i) Mrs. Anjali Khant

(iii) Mr. Ashfak Mulla

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for Short Term Secured Borrowings :- HDFC Bank Ltd

Primary Security:
(i) Hypothecation on current assets including stock and book debts of Company

Rate of Interest 9.50% (MCLR rate +1.05% Current MCLR rate is 8.45% for one year period)

Collateral Security:

(i) Equitable Mortgage of the Plot No W 27, T-Block, Bhosari, MIDC, Taluka-Haveli, Pune 411026
Note : The company has not utilised Cash Credit facility from HDFC Bank Ltd at the end of the year.

Note:- 8 Trade Payables

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar 2020

Creditors for Goods and Services

(i) total outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro, small and Medium
enterprises.

29,130,948.01
73,038,196.16

26,165,459.21
60,196,728.42

Total

102,169,144.17

86,362,277.19

(i) The year end balance of sundry creditors are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.
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Note:- 9 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar 2020

(a) Other payables

Statutory remittances

Advance Received From Customers

Other Expenses

Deposit Received From Customers
Total

919,904.79
4,667,462.94
3,246,664.25

878,492.20
2,846,691.84
3,111,949.75

8,834,031.98

7,559,703.74

Note:- 10 Short Term Provisions

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar
2020

Provision For Income Tax

Provision for Audit Fees

Provision for Dividend and Tax Thereon
Total

5,250,000.00
1,050,625.00

5,970,000.00
562,500.00

6,300,625.00

6,632,500.00

Note:- 12 Deferred Tax Assets

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar 2020

Deferred tax (liability) / asset

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Assets

Opening Balance ~
Related to Fixed Assets and Others

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax Assets

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
Net deferred tax (liability) / asset

2,227,835.13
315,673.32

1,514,322.95
2,77,138.00

2,543,508.45

-804.36

2,227,835.13

2,542,704.09

2,227,835.13

Note:- 13 Long - Term Loans and Advances

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar
2020

(a) Security Deposit :
Unsecured, Consider Good
Total

1,376,843.00

1,503,436.00

1,376,843.00

1,503,436.00

Note:- 14 Current Investment

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar
2020

Birla Sun Life Cash Plus Growth
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Aggregate market value of listed and quoted investments

968,990.70

575,578.43

968,990.70

575,578.43

968,990.70

575,578.43

973,465.17

601,758.60

Note:- 15 Inventories (As certified by the Management)

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar 2020

Traded and Finished Goods
(includes Stock In Transit of Rs.1,54,02,164)
Total

121,387,950.46

113,155,340.80

121,387,950.46

113,155,340.80

Note:- 16 Trade Receivable

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar
2020

(a) Trade Receivable outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they were due for payment
(b) Others Trade Receivable :

Unsecured, Considered Good

Total

2,261,722.40

78,504,476.42

3,716,419.26

62,240,713.37

80,766,198.82

65,957,132.63

(i) The year end balance of sundry Debtors are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.
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Note:- 17 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar 2020

(a) Cash in hand
(b) Balances with Banks
Total

294,869.35
7,080,359.08

254,692.35
2,935,777.54

7,375,228.43

3,190,469.89

Note:- 18 Short Term Loans and Advances

Particulars

As at 31 Mar 2021

As at 31 Mar 2020

(a) Loan & Advances To Employees

(b) Balance With Government Authorities
(c) Fixed Deposit with Bank and Accrued Interest Thereon (Margin against

LC/BG issued)
(d) Advance to Suppliers and others
Total

983,159.00
6,847,514.30

4,551,457.06
1,402,247.65

739,683.00
6,847,096.97

2,739,100.00
5,731,037.85

13,784,378.01

16,056,917.82

In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:- 131794W
Sd/-

CA Krunal Shah

Partner

Membership No:- 115075

UDIN: 21115075AAAAAL9225

Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Ketan Khant
Managing Director
(DIN: 03506163)
Sd/-

Shikha Sunil Chaurasia
(Company Secretary)

Sdy/-
Anjali Khant

(DIN:03506175)
Sd/-
Vaishali Pai

Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021

Whole Time Director

Sdy/-
Ashfak Mulla

(Chief Financial Officer)

Whole Time Director
(DIN:03506172)
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Note:- 19 Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended

31 Mar 2021

For the year ended
31 Mar 2020

(a) Sale of Goods
(b) Sale of Services
Less: -GST

Total

670,798,133.54
3,486,211.50
96,698,319.21

662,035,301.11
2,726,415.83
95,397,797.38

577,586,025.13

569,363,919.56

Particulars

For the year ended

31 Mar 2021

For the year ended
31 Mar 2020

(a) Sale of Goods
Trading Goods
Filter Items
Manufacturing Goods
Filter Items

Total- Sale of Traded Goods

618,013,421.22

53,363,858.68

639,821,547.97

22,213,753.14

671,377,279.90

662,035,301.11

Note:- 20 Other Income

Particulars

For the year ended

31 Mar 2021

For the year ended
31 Mar 2020

Operational Income
Discount Received
Round Off
Miscellaneous Receipt
Gain/Loss in Exchange

Non Operational Income

1,627,834.56
588.15
63,028.04
224,391.10

11,75,491.52
529.74
89,301.00
76,263.18

1,915,841.85

1,341,585.44
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Interest Received
Profit on Sale of Investments

Total

127,719.00
93,412.27

19,296.00
6,19,411.13

221,131.27

638,707.13

2,136,973.12

19,80,292.57

Note:- 21 Purchase of Traded Goods

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mar 2021

For the year ended
31 Mar 2020

Traded and Finished Goods

Total

487,049,276.65

50,56,52,143.81

487,049,276.65

50,56,52,143.81

Note:- 22 Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mar 2021

For the year ended
31 Mar 2020

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods

Less:- Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods
Less : Input Credit avail in GST

Net (Increase)/ Decrease

121,387,950.46

11,31,55,340.80

121,387,950.46

113,155,340.80

11,31,55,340.80

7,94,40,042.97

113,155,340.80

7,94,40,042.97

-8,232,609.66

-3,37,15,297.83

Note:- 23 Employee Benefits expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mar 2021

For the year ended
31 Mar 2020

Salaries and wages
Contribution to PF and Gratuity
Staff welfare expenses

Total

39,458,470.00
1,283,453.29
613,524.63

3,80,76,395.00
11,76,363.70
5,88,893.75

41,355,447.92

3,98,41,652.45

Note:- 24 Financial Costs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mar 2021

For the year ended
31 Mar 2020

Bank Charges and Interest Expenses
Total

607,499.65

8,70,608.78

607,499.65

8,70,608.78

Note:- 25 Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
31 Mar 2021

For the year ended
31 Mar 2020

Bad Debts

Repairs & Maintenance
Warranty Expenses
Conveyance Expenses
Electricity Charges

Legal & Professional Charges
Postage, Courier & Transportation Charges
Printing & Stationery

Office Expenses

Rent, Rates & Taxes
Telephone Expenses
Travelling Expenses (Including Foreign Travelling)
Insurance

Books & Periodicals

Audit Fees

Miscellaneous Expenses

E commerce

Advertisement Expenses
Sales Promotion Expenses
Commission

Discount Allowed

Donation

Listing Fees

1,707,632.00
54,947.53
943,373.36
444,573.47
5,418,661.00
6,744,895.45
174,125.97
956,132.06
8,802,046.00
397,640.50
202,272.69
136,202.00
27,564.00
1,135,000.00
913,640.30
274,113.00
156,625.00
2,098,523.87
7,424,550.97
87,093.34

25,000.00

1,471,779.00
2,241,325.09
85,725.68
1,178,622.58
447,918.00
5,240,499.00
6,660,568.99
292,970.36
1,129,201.37
6,249,372.83
451,354.30
1,428,455.16
89,992.00
67,247.00
736,800.00
543,012.74
58,085.11
95,817.00
295,256.92
5,634,924.18
249,864.90
2,052.00
25,000.00
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Total

| 38,124,612.51 |

34,676,024.21

Notes: 25(i)

Particulars

31 Mar 2021

For the year ended For the year ended

31 Mar 2020

(i) Payments to the auditors comprises (net of service tax/GST input

credit, where applicable):
As auditors - statutory audit
For taxation matters

7,85,000.00
3,50,000.00

4,85,000.00
2,50,000.00

Total

1,135,000.00

7,35,000.00

In terms of our report attached.
For Krunal M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No:- 131794W
Sd/-

CA Krunal Shah

Partner

Membership No:- 115075

UDIN: 21115075AAAAAL9225

Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Ketan Khant Anjali Khant Ashfak Mulla
Managing Director = Whole Time Director = Whole Time Director
(DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175) (DIN:03506172)

Sd/- Sd/-

Shikha Sunil Chaurasia Vaishali Pai

(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)

Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note:-

26 Earning per share

Note

Particulars

For the year
ended 31
March, 2021

For the year
ended 31
March, 2020

26

Earnings per share

Basic

Continuing operations

Net profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations

Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon

Net profit /(Loss) for the year from continuing operations attributable to the equity
shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares

Par value per share

Earnings per share from continuing operations - Basic

Total operations

Net profit/(Loss) for the year

Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon

Net profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares

Par value per share

Earnings per share - Basic

Basic Earnings per share (excluding extraordinary items)

Continuing operations

Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations

(Add) / Less: Extraordinary items (net of tax) relating to continuing operations

Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon

Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations attributable to the equity
shareholders, excluding extraordinary items

Weighted average number of equity shares

Par value per share

Earnings per share from continuing operations, excluding extraordinary items - Basic
Total operations

Net profit / (loss) for the year

(Add) / Less: Extraordinary items (net of tax)

Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon

Net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to the equity shareholders, excluding
extraordinary items

Weighted average number of equity shares

Par value per share

Earnings per share, excluding extraordinary items - Basic

Diluted Earnings per share

Details are not provided since The Company does not have outstanding Warrants,
Stock Options and Convertible bonds outstanding at the end of the year.

13,295,452.78
0.00

1,68,95,736.93
0.00

13,295,452.78
82,23,000.00
10.00

1.62

16,895,736.93
82,23,000.00
10.00

2.05

13,295,452.78
0
13,295,452.78
82,23,000.00
10.00

1.62

1,68,95,736.93
0
16,895,736.93
82,23,000.00
10.00

2.05

13,295,452.78
0.00
0.00

1,68,95,736.93
0.00
0.00

13,295,452.78
82,23,000.00
10.00

1.62

16,895,736.93
82,23,000.00
10.00

2.05

13,295,452.78
0.00
0.00

1,68,95,736.93
0.00
0.00

13,295,452.78
82,23,000.00
10

1.62

1,86,15,283.35
82,23,000.00
10

2.05
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Date: 22.06.2021




FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED

(CIN: L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Tenth Annual Report - 2020-21

FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Note:- 27 Related Party Disclosures
Note | Particulars

27 | Related party transactions
27.1.a | Details of related parties:
Description of relationship Names of related parties
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Ketan Khant
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Anjali Khant
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Ashfak Mulla
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Vaishali Pai
(KMP)
(KMP)
(KMP)

P
Key Management Personnel (KMP Shikha Chaurasia
Key Management Personnel (KMP Chandan Mantri
Key Management Personnel (KMP Sanjiv Nanda

Subsidiary Company Innovative Technocare Private Limited

Subsidiary Company Of Water Private Limited

Relatives of KMP Rehana Mulla

Note: Related parties have been identified by the Management.

Details of related party transactions during the year ended 31 March, 2021 and balances outstanding
as at 31 March, 2021:

Subsidiary | Relative of
Co KMP
14,306,013.00 0.00 | 754,380.00 | 15,060,393.00
(13,610,337.00) (0.00) | (754,380.00) | (14,364,717.00)
2,640,000.00 0.00 | 195,000.00 2,835,000.00
(1,428,000.00) (0.00) | (180,000.00) | (1,608,000.00)
0.00 68297.22 0.00 68297.22
0.00 (18892.00) 0.00 (18892.00)
0.00 510,849.10 0.00 510,849.10
0.00 (37,799.00) 0.00 (37,799.00)
72,000.00 0.00 0.00 72,000.00
(71,800.00) 0.00 0.00 (71,800.00)
Balances outstanding at the end of the KMP Subsidiary | Relative of
year Co KMP
987,804.00 0.00 50,769.00 1,038,573.00
(1,103,037.00) (0.00) (62,865.00) | (1,165,902.00)
1,017,500.00 0.00 19,500.00 1,037,000.00
(119,000.00) (0.00) (15,000.00) (134,000.00)
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 56,368.00 0.00 56,368.00
0.00 (324,468.00) 0.00 (324,468.00)
33,300.00 0.00 0.00 33,300.00
(32,310.00) 0.00 0.00 (32,310.00)
Note: Figures in bracket relates to the previous year
In terms of our report attached.
For Krunal M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Firm Registration No:- 131794W Ketan Khant Anjali Khant Ashfak Mulla
Sd/- Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director = Whole Time Director
CA Krunal Shah (DIN: 03506163) (DIN:03506175) (DIN:03506172)
Partner Sdy/- Sd/-
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UDIN: 21115075AAAAAL9225 (Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)

Transaction during the year KMP Total

Salary

Rent

Purchase of Goods

Sale of Goods

Interest on Loan paid

Total

Salary

Rent

Purchase of Goods

Sale of Goods

Interest on loan paid

102
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Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021

Place : Mumbai
Date: 22.06.2021

FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)

Notes forming part of the financial statements
Note:- 28

28.1

Employee benefit plans
Defined benefit plans

The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:

i. Gratuity

The following table sets out the funded status of the defined benefit schemes and the amount

recognised in the financial statements:

Particulars

For the year
ended 31 Mar
2021

For the year ended 31
Mar 2020

Gratuity

Gratuity

Components of employer expense

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Curtailment cost / (credit)

Settlement cost / (credit)

Past service cost

Actuarial losses/ (gains)

Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss

1,112,127
447,907
-188,542

-289,558
1,081,934

1,054,230
442,671
-179,420

-366,074
951,407

Actual contribution and benefit payments for year
Actual benefit payments
Actual contributions

Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)]

Unrecognised past service costs

Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

8,014,195
2,562,010
-5,452,185

-5,452,185

6,694,349
2,324,098
-4,370,251

-4,370,251

Particulars

For the year
ended 31 March,
2021

For the year ended
31 March, 2020

Gratuity

Gratuity

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during
the year

Present value of DBO at beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Curtailment cost / (credit)

Settlement cost / (credit)

Plan amendments

Acquisitions

Actuarial (gains) / losses

Past service cost

6,694,349
1,112,127
447,907

-107,034

5,748,972
1,054,230
442,671

-472,755
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Benefits paid -133,154 -78,769
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 8,014,195 6,694,349

Change in fair value of assets during the year
Plan assets at beginning of the year 2,324,098 2,330,128
Acquisition adjustment - -

Expected return on plan assets 188,542 179,420
Actual company contributions - -
Actuarial gain / (loss) 182,524 -106,681
Benefits paid -133,154 -78,769
Plan assets at the end of the year 2,562,010 2,324,098
Actual return on plan assets
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 6.45% 6.80%
Expected return on plan assets 6.45% 6.80%
Salary escalation 7.00% 7.00%
In terms of our report attached.

For Krunal M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Sd/- Sd/- Sdy/-
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FILTRA CONSULTANTS AND ENGINEERS LIMITED
(CIN:L41000MH2011PLC217837)

Note:- 29 Notes forming part of the financial
statements

29.1

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not

provided for)

Note

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 Mar 2021

For the year
ended
31 Mar 2020

I

Contingent liabilities

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
(b) Guarantees

(c) Letter of Credit issued to supplier

NIL
4,000,000.00
1,763,204.30

NIL
4,000,000.00
14,151,211.80

Total

5,763,204.30

18,151,211.80

Commitments

The Company has not provided any contractual commitment as on date which will have material
effect on the financial statement of the company.

Details of Transaction in foreign Currency on account of:

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 Mar 2021

For the year
ended
31 Mar 2020

(i) Export

(ii) Foreign Travelling
(iii) Import

TOTAL

311,861.29

21,253,659.42

6,948,911.59
348,647.61
19,796,402.70

21,565,520.71

27,093,961.90

Previous year's figures

Particulars

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with
the current year's classification / disclosure.

BALANCES OF TRADE DEBTORS, CREDITORS AND LOANS & ADVANCES

Sundry Debtors and Creditors, Loans and advances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation
No provision has been made for the doubtful Debts, Loans and Advances as they are considered
good for recovery.

In terms of Section 22 of the Micro, small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006, the
outstanding to these enterprises are required to be disclosed. However, these enterprises are
required to be registered under the Act. The amounts due to such suppliers if any, have been
identified to the extent such information is provided by the supplier.

In the opinion of the Board

a) The realization value of all assets other than fixed and non current investments in the ordinary
course of business, would not be less than the amount at which they are stated

b) Adequate Provisions have been made for all known liabilities and there is no other undisclosed
liabilities and there is no other undisclosed liabilities of contingent nature.

c) All the expenses paid/provided have been incurred for the purpose of the business of the company.

In terms of our report attached.
For Krunal M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration No:- 131794W
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Ashfak Mulla
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